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MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF ANNAPOLIS 

MUNICIPAL COUNCIL AGENDA 
10:00 a.m. – Tuesday, February 15, 2022 

Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

 

10:00 

a.m. 
1.   
 

2.    

 

3.  

 ROLL CALL 
 

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 
 

APPROVAL of the AGENDA (Order of the Day) 
 

 4.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.  

 

 
4.1 

 

 

 

4.2 

 
 

 

 

 

ADOPTION OF MUNICIPAL COUNCIL MINUTES 
2022-01-18 Regular  

THAT the minutes of the Regular Session of Council held January 18, 2022, be 

approved as circulated.  

 

2022-01-25 Special  

THAT the minutes of the Special Session of Council held January 25, 2022, be 

approved as circulated.  

 

BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
None. 

 

 6.  
 

7.  

 

 

 

 

 
7.1 

 

7.2 

 

 

 

7.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
Reorganization of (Nova Scotia Federation of Municipalities) NSFM 

 

Recommendation Report Draft Annapolis County Accessibility Plan 

THAT municipal council approve the Annapolis County Accessibility Plan for 

submission to the Province of Nova Scotia in March, 2022.  

 

Recommendation Report Continued Use of the Bridgetown Area Community 

Rate 

To recommend that municipal council approve the continued use of the Bridgetown 

Community Area Rate with the following costs to be included in the rate for 2022/23. 

Debt payments for each of the following Bridgetown specific assets: 

- Payments on Fire Hall #1 due to expire in 2022/23 

- Payments on the Bridgetown Sewer due to expire in 2022/23 

- Payments on the Bridgetown Buildings due to expire in 2022/23 

- Payments on the Bridgetown Town Hall due to expire in 2024/25 

- Payments on the Hurricane Fire Truck due to expire in 2027/28 

- Payments on the Fire Hall #2 due to expire in 2028/29;  

Fire Capital Operating Costs as determined and approved by the Bridgetown 

Dissolution Committee and approximating $36,820 annually;  

Maintenance costs on the Town Hall estimated to be $35,000 annually;  

The total charged to the Bridgetown Community Area rate (BCAR) for the next 

budget year would be $137,740 representing an area rate of $00203, adding $202 to 2 of 148 2022-02-15 Council Agenda Package
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MUNICIPAL COUNCIL AGENDA 
10:00 a.m. – Tuesday, February 15, 2022 

Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.4 

 

each assessed property value of $100,000.  (Currently $492,617 and .007204 

respectively); and  

The corresponding increase to the base rate based on costs not allocated to the BCAR 

would increase taxes per $100,000 from $1,025 to $1,031. 

 

Recommendation Report Demolition of the Former Upper Clements Park Site 

Award of Contract 

That Municipal Council award the contract for the RFP MCOA2021-11-05 Former 

Amusement Park Site Demolition & Site Clean-up Upper Clements, NS to Dexter 

Construction Ltd. for a total value of $496,500 plus HST and approve a contingency 

budget for general demolition and hazardous waste materials of $100,000 plus HST 

(project budget total of $622,065.99 inclusive of HST rebate).  

 8.   
 

 

8.1 

 

 

 

 

8.2 

 

 

 

 

 

8.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.4 

 

 

 

8.5 

 

 

 

8.6 

 

 

 

COMMITTEE & ORGANIZATIONAL REPORTS 
 

Special Committee of the Whole (January 25, 2022) 

Future Operation of Raven Haven Beachside Family Park  

THAT municipal council authorize the CAO to prepare a long-term plan for future 

operation of Raven Haven as a Day Use Park commencing in 2022-23. 

 

Committee of the Whole (February 8, 2022) 

Former Bridgetown Town Hall  

THAT Municipal Council begin the process to register the former Bridgetown 

Town Hall as a municipal heritage property and that the former Town Hall property 

not be sold until the registration process is completed, in accordance with the 

recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  

 

St. Andrews Church Substantial Alteration Application 

THAT municipal council approve the St. Andrew’s Anglican Church application 

for substantial alteration to replace the amber window glass with clear glass, 

encouraging the applicant to retain some of the amber glass in the gothic revival 

windows on the north and south side of the building as much as possible, pursuant 

to the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.   

 

Intermunicipal Emergency Services Agreement 

THAT Municipal Council approve the Inter-municipal Emergency Services 

Agreement, in accordance with the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  

 

C6 Regional Emergency Management Bylaw 

THAT Municipal Council give first reading to approve the C6 Regional Emergency 

Management Bylaw, pursuant to the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  

 

Letter of Request to Minister Responsible for Emergency Management 

THAT Municipal Council approve forwarding the letter of request to the Minister 

Responsible for Emergency Management (Honourable John Lohr), in accordance 

with the recommendation of Committee of the Whole. 3 of 148 2022-02-15 Council Agenda Package
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8.7 

 

 

 

 

 

8.8 

 

 

 

 

 

8.9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.11 

 

8.12 

 

8.13 

 

8.14 

 

8.15 

 

8.16 

 

8.17 

 

8.18 

 

 

Victoria Hamilton Appointment 

THAT municipal council appoint Victoria Hamilton as a Development Officer for 

the Municipality of the County of Annapolis to administer the Municipality’s Land 

Use Bylaws and Subdivision Bylaw, pursuant to the recommendation of Committee 

of the Whole.  

 

Brendan Lamb Appointment  

THAT municipal council appoint Brendan Lamb as a Development Officer for the 

Municipality of the County of Annapolis to administer the Municipality’s Land Use 

Bylaws and Subdivision Bylaw, in accordance with the recommendation of 

Committee of the Whole.  

 

Municipally-Registered Heritage Property Clarence Community Hall 

Application for Substantial Alterations  

THAT municipal council refer the substantial alteration application to replace the 

roof and exterior trim boards for Clarence Community Hall, 3337 Clarence Road, 

to the Heritage Advisory Committee, pursuant to the recommendation of 

Committee of the Whole.  

 

Request Proposal from Western Woodlot Services Cooperative 

THAT municipal council request a proposed operating plan from Western Woodlot 

Services Cooperative with respect to an ecological management process of a 15-20 

Hectare section of the Greywood site (PID 05091152), in accordance with the 

recommendation of Committee of the Whole. 

 

ANNUAL REPORTS  

In accordance with AM-1.3.1 Presentation of Annual Reports Policy.  

Each to be Received for Information 

 

Annapolis Basin Conference Centre 

 

Annapolis County Barristers Society (not received by time of printing) 

 

Annapolis County 4H Leaders Council 

 

Annapolis County Federation of Agriculture 

 

Annapolis County Fire Services Association 

 

Annapolis County Ground Search & Rescue 

 

Annapolis Royal Historic Gardens 
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8.19 

 

8.20 

 

8.21 

 

8.22 

 

8.23 

 

8.24 

 

8.25 

 

8.26 

 

8.27 

 

8.28 

 

8.29 

 

8.30 

 

8.31 

 

8.32 

 

Annapolis Valley Exhibition Society 

 

Annapolis Valley Historical Society MacDonald Museum 

 

Annapolis Valley Regional Library Board 

 

Annapolis Valley Regional Centre for Education 

 

South West Nova Transition House 

 

Southwest Nova Biosphere Region Association 

 

Special Olympics Annapolis County 

 

Trans County Transportation Society 

 

Victorian Order of Nurses, Community Support Services 

 

Visitor Information Centre Annapolis Royal (not received by time of printing) 

 

Visitor Information Centre Bear River 

 

Visitor Information Centre Bridgetown 

 

Visitor Information Centre Lawrencetown (not received by time of printing) 

 

Visitor Information Centre Middleton 

 

 9.   

 

 

10.  

 

9.1 

 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 
2022-01-12 Municipal Affairs and Housing 

 

IN-CAMERA 

None. 

 

 11.   ADJOURNMENT 

THAT Municipal Council adjourn its session until the next regular meeting 

scheduled for Tuesday, March 15, 2022. 
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2022-01-18 Municipal Council 

Summary of Motions 
 

MOTION 220118.01 Excuse Absence – Councillor Connell ............................................................................... 1 

MOTION 220118.02 Minutes 2021-12-14 Municipal Council ............................................................................ 1 

MOTION 220118.03 A1 Dog Bylaw Amend Final Reading ............................................................................... 1 

MOTION 220118.04 AM-2.2.1 Interim Staff Appointments Policy Repeal ...................................................... 3 

MOTION 220118.05 AM-1.4.2.1 Fire Response Services Policy Amend ........................................................... 3 

MOTION 220118.06 East End Area MPS LUB Review ..................................................................................... 3 

MOTION 220118.07 Cornwallis Park MPS LUB Review .................................................................................. 3 

MOTION 220118.08 TBR Renewal Annapolis County Water Line Addition Hillside $102,556 .................... 4 

MOTION 220118.09 TBR Renewal Municipal Land and Buildings $7,200,000 .............................................. 4 

MOTION 220118.10 AM-1.4.14 Low Income Tax Exemption Policy Amend .................................................. 4 

MOTION 220118.11 Community Grants Program Current Applications ....................................................... 4 

MOTION 220118.12 2021-12-15 Annapolis Community Health Board Request Staff to Recommend a 

Positive Response 5 
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Minutes of the regular session of Municipal Council held on Tuesday, January 18, 2022 at 10:00 a.m., via 

Zoom Teleconference, in accordance with the Direction of the Minister under a Declared State of 

Emergency (see attached). 

 

Roll Call 
District 1 – Bruce Prout, present 

District 2 - Brian “Fuzzy” Connell 

MOTION 220118.01 Excuse Absence – Councillor Connell 

It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor LeBlanc, to excuse Councillor 

Connell from meeting attendance requirements. Motion carried unanimously.  

District 3 – Alan Parish, present 

District 4 – Clyde Barteaux, present  

District 5 – Lynn Longmire, present 

District 6 – Alex Morrison, present 

District 7 – David Hudson, present 

District 8 – Michael Gunn, present 

District 9 – Wendy Sheridan, present 

District 10 – Brad Redden, present 

District 11 – Diane LeBlanc, present 

 

Also Present: CAO David Dick; Municipal Clerk Carolyn Young; other staff including W. Atwell, D. 

Campbell, and C. Mason. 

 

Disclosure of Interest 
None. 

 

Agenda Approval 
Deputy Warden Gunn moved, seconded by Councillor LeBlanc, to approve the agenda as circulated. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Minutes 
 

MOTION 220118.02 Minutes 2021-12-14 Municipal Council  

It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor Sheridan, that the minutes of 

the regular session of Municipal Council held on December 14, 2021, be approved as 

circulated. Motion carried unanimously.  

  

Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

Re: A1 Dog Bylaw Final Reading 

MOTION 220118.03 A1 Dog Bylaw Amend Final Reading 

Deputy Warden Gunn moved, seconded by Councillor Prout, that municipal council give Final 

Reading to amend A1 Dog Bylaw by increasing minimum fines, in accordance with First 

Reading given at December 14, 2021 regular council session. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Councillor Comments 
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District 1 – Councillor Prout wished all a Happy New Year and sent a ‘thank you’ to NS Power crews and 

TIR snow plow operators who put in such great work over the past 10 days to restore power and keep 

the roads safe. Hopes all can maintain efforts with COVID as it is really testing Nova Scotia right now 

and do our best to limit its spread. Hopes it is the beginning of the end.  
 

District 3 – Warden Parish echoed comments regarding the NS Power crew work. Seems to be weekly 

storms, first one was the most difficult here in Annapolis county. Large parts of the county, the most 

populated areas were out for up to 20+ hours. He received a number of complaints re clearing of 

sidewalks in Bridgetown and passed those along to staff. They acknowledge the big storms and large 

amounts of snow.  
 

District 4 – Councillor Barteaux noted it’s been a busy new year cleaning up after storms. He hopes all 

have a safe winter season, and with daylight hours lengthening, dig out skis and snowshoes. Continue 

to be aware of COVID conditions. He also expressed appreciation to utility and clean-up crews. 
 

District 5 – Councillor Longmire reported that the Holiday season has been packed up and in this new 

year, facing the on-going pandemic, her wish is for a wonderful 2022. Blessed in District 5 with families 

affected in devastating ways and community pulling together to help them. Thankful for plows, Nova 

Scotia Power, Bellaliant, and all who come out to restore utilities. During storms emergencies can arise, 

be prepared. Continue to check on the most vulnerable who may not have heat or water. Reach out to 

them.  
 

District 6 – Councillor Morrison (as submitted) 

Hope all had a merry Christmas season, celebrated the start of 2022 and are ready to contribute to the 

defeat of covid-19 

I enjoy municipal politics immensely, I am proud to be a politician 

I have functioned within international, federal, provincial and municipal political environments for the 

vast majority of my life 

I take pleasure in being part of a county team of politicians, working with our competent and capable 

staff within an attitude of being caring and compassionate about and to the needs of our citizens 

I have recently heard municipal politics described as being a ‘racket’, heard it twice, in fact, in the same 

day 

My disagreement with that view is foundational to my whole being and I will continue to do all I can 

for the good of Annapolis county residents 
 

District 7 – Councillor Hudson echoed comments on crews working to clean up after the recent storms.  

Plowing and sidewalk cleaning in Bridgetown – there is still a lot of work to be done.  
 

District 8 – Deputy Warden Gunn (as submitted) 

Good morning and happy new year. I received calls and letters on my usual 3 topics this month, and 

they would be opposition to the vaccine mandate, garbage not collected and roads not plowed.  But this 

morning I received a letter outlining the detrimental effect of the Provincial government’s decision on 

the new regulations of the operation of daycares, and private owners are being asked to make hasty 

decisions without all the information.  They have been told, in some cases, that the information will be 

provided after the deadline by which they need to make their decisions.  I suspect this will be the first 

of many letters I or others will receive on this topic.  
 

District 9 – Councillor Sheridan echoed remarks thanking staff and utilities. Would like to say there was 

an event coming up – but there isn’t, so please continue to support local fire departments, SMH 

Foundation, purchase local. Important to communities right now.  
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District 10 – Councillor Redden noted the Fire Fighters ongoing 50/50 draw and encouraged all to support 

local. Community Hall in Brickton is undergoing a revitalization. Enjoys noticing this. Strangers pitch 

in and the good deed goes noticed. Random acts of kindness are common. A maritime, Canadian thing. 

Fantastic to be part of this community.  
 

District 11 – Councillor LeBlanc noted there was no snow in 2021 to talk about and now we have had two 

great storms so far this year. There have been a lot of problems with clearing snow but crews have done 

what they could – thank you to them, and utilities. Hopes there are not a few more storms coming in a 

row because there is no place to put more snow! Power outages have added to COVID and trying to get 

around and stay warm can cause problems. In this new year, let’s hope COVID moves out – had enough 

of it. Causes grief and stress. On to a better 2022! 

 

New Business 
None.  

 

Reports and Recommendations 
 

Re: Committee of the Whole (2021-12-14) 
 

 AM-2.2.1 Interim Staff Appointments Policy Repeal  

MOTION 220118.04 AM-2.2.1 Interim Staff Appointments Policy Repeal 

It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor Longmire, that municipal 

council repeal AM-2.2.1 Interim Staff Appointments Policy, pursuant to seven-day notice 

given at December 14, 2021 Committee of the Whole. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 AM-1.4.2.1 Fire Response Services Policy Amend 

MOTION 220118.05 AM-1.4.2.1 Fire Response Services Policy Amend 

Deputy Warden Gunn moved, seconded by Councillor LeBlanc, that municipal council amend 

AM-1.4.2.1 Fire Response Services Policy to read Fire and Emergency Services Policy with 

amendments as reviewed in accordance with seven-day notice given at December 14, 2021 

Committee of the Whole. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Re: Committee of the Whole (2022-01-11) 
 

 East End Area MPS LUB Review 

MOTION 220118.06 East End Area MPS LUB Review 

It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor Sheridan, that municipal 

council commence a review of the Annapolis County East End Area Municipal Planning 

Strategy and Land Use Bylaw and adopt a public participation program that would refer the 

review applications to the East End Area Advisory Committee and the Annapolis County 

Planning Advisory Committee for their review and recommendation along with applicable 

public meetings and advertisements, in accordance with the recommendation of Committee of 

the Whole. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 Cornwallis Park MPS LUB Review 

MOTION 220118.07 Cornwallis Park MPS LUB Review 

Deputy Warden Gunn moved, seconded by Councillor Morrison, that municipal council 

commence a review of the Cornwallis Park Municipal Planning strategy and Land Use Bylaw 
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and adopt a public participation program that would refer the review applications to the 

Cornwallis Park Area Advisory Committee and the Annapolis County Planning Advisory 

Committee for their review and recommendation along with applicable public meetings and 

advertisements, pursuant to the recommendation of Committee of the Whole. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

 TBR Renewal Annapolis County Water Line Addition Hillside $102,556 

MOTION 220118.08 TBR Renewal Annapolis County Water Line Addition Hillside 

$102,556  

It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor Barteaux , that municipal 

council authorize the period of borrowing in the amount not exceeding One Hundred Two 

Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty-Six Dollars ($102,556) be extended for a further period not 

exceeding Twelve (12) months from the date of the approval of the Minister of Municipal 

Affairs for the Temporary Borrowing Resolution Annapolis County Water Line Addition 

Hillside, in accordance with the recommendation of Committee of the Whole. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

 TBR Renewal Municipal Land and Buildings $7,200,000 

MOTION 220118.09 TBR Renewal Municipal Land and Buildings $7,200,000 

Deputy Warden Gunn moved, seconded by Councillor Barteaux, that municipal council 

authorize the period of borrowing in the amount not exceeding Seven Million, Two Hundred 

Thousand Dollars ($7,200,000) be extended for a further period not exceeding Twelve (12) 

months from the date of the approval of the Minister of Municipal Affairs for the Temporary 

Borrowing Resolution Municipal Land and Buildings, pursuant to the recommendation of 

Committee of the Whole. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 AM-1.4.14 Low Income Tax Exemption Policy Amend  

MOTION 220118.10 AM-1.4.14 Low Income Tax Exemption Policy Amend 

It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor Morrison, that municipal 

council amend AM-1.4.14 Low Income Tax Exemption Policy by increasing the exemption 

amount to $350 and increasing the allowable income amount to $27,000, in accordance with 

seven-day notice given at Committee of the Whole. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 Community Grants Program Current Applications 

MOTION 220118.11 Community Grants Program Current Applications 

Deputy Warden Gunn moved, seconded by Councillor Barteaux, that municipal council 

approve the allocation of grants from the 2021-22 Community Grants Program, in accordance 

with AM-1.4.9 Community Grants Policy for a total of $9,200 as follows: 

- $1,200 Granville Centre Community Hall Association; and  

- $8,000 Lawrencetown Exhibition Youth Arena;  

Subject to a review of the HST, pursuant to the recommendation of Committee of the Whole. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Correspondence  
 

Re: 2021-12-15 Annapolis Community Health Board – inviting municipal council to join in calling for a 

universal healthy school food program. It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor 

Longmire, to receive for information.  
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Councillor Morrison moved, seconded by Deputy Warden Gunn, to amend the motion by adding: ‘that 

having considered the letter under discussion, that municipal council ask staff how we might approach 

answering in the positive to join this endeavor.’ Motion carried unanimously.  
 

The question was called on the motion as amended to read 

MOTION 220118.12 2021-12-15 Annapolis Community Health Board Request Staff to 

Recommend a Positive Response 

It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor Longmire, to receive for 

information, and having considered the letter under discussion, that municipal council ask staff 

how we might approach answering in the positive to join this endeavor. Motion carried 

unanimously.   

 

Re: 2021-12-22 Service Nova Scotia and Internal Services – in response to the November 17, 2021 letter 

to Minister Lohr, noting this is one of government’s top priorities. Minister Colton LeBlanc outlined 

several of the strategies in place to help address the issue of housing and homelessness and improving the 

housing situation across the province.  
 

Deputy Warden Gunn moved, seconded by Councillor Longmire, to receive for information. After 

discussion, the Question was called on the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

In-Camera  
It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor Sheridan, to meet in-camera from 11:02 

a.m. until 11:52 a.m. in accordance with Sections 22(2)(e) contract negotiations and (f) litigation or 

potential litigation of the Municipal Government Act. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

The Clerk noted the upcoming Special Committee of the Whole meetings on January 25th regarding Fire 

Services Funding, Accessibility, and Raven Haven, and January 26th regarding the Bridgetown Area 

Community Rate.  

 

Adjournment  
Upon motion of Deputy Warden Gunn and Councillor Sheridan, the meeting adjourned at 11:54 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Warden       Municipal Clerk 

 

_____________________________    ________________________ 
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Direction of the Minister 

under a Declared State of Emergency 
(Section 14 of the Emergency Management Act) 

20-008 
 

Under my authority in Section 14 of the Emergency Management Act, I order that this 

Direction (20-008) repeal and replace the Direction regarding municipal meetings issued on 

March 22, 2020. 

 

During the Provincial State of Emergency declared on March 22, 2020, and under the 

authority provided to me in Section 14 of the Emergency Management Act, in addition to 

any other directives I have issued and not repealed or otherwise terminated, I direct that all 

municipalities and villages in the Province: 

 

1. Effective at 8am on July 29, 2020, may hold meetings exclusively in person if all 

the following conditions are met: 

 

i) the total number of persons present does not exceed a gathering limitation imposed 

in a Health Protection Act order; 

 

ii) all physical distancing requirements or other requirements imposed in a Health 

Protection Act order are met. 

 

2. If the conditions set out in (1) cannot be met, the municipality or village must not 

hold meetings exclusively in person and must instead hold the meeting partly or wholly as 

a virtual meeting by video or telephone, and ensure that all of the following conditions are 

met: 

 

i) the total number of persons present for any in person portion of the meeting does not 

exceed a gathering limitation imposed in a Health Protection Act order; and 

 

ii) for any in person portion of the meeting, all physical distancing requirements or other 

requirements imposed in a Health Protection Act order are met. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12 of 148 2022-02-15 Council Agenda Package



 

 

For clarity, this direction does not apply to statutorily required meetings of electors for a 

village commission which are covered under Direction 20-007 issued on May 20, 2020. 

 

Despite this direction, municipalities and villages are still authorized to continue making 

other operational decisions especially those required for service delivery. 

 

Please note that these directions are in addition to any requirements established in a Medical 

Officer's order under the Health Protection Act. 

 

A failure to comply with this direction could result in a summary conviction with fines 

between $500 to $10,000 for individuals and up to $100,000 for a corporation per 

incident. 

 

This direction will remain in place for the duration of the Provincial State of Emergency 

unless it is terminated in writing by me earlier. 

 

Dated July 29, 2020. 

 

Original signed by 

 

Hon. Chuck Porter 

Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
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Special Session of Municipal Council 

Summary of Motions 
 

 

 

MOTION 220125.01 Nictaux Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrade .................................................. 1 
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Minutes of the special Municipal Council meeting held on Tuesday, January 25, 2022, at 1:53 p.m., via 

Zoom Teleconference, in accordance with the Direction of the Minister under a Declared State of 

Emergency (see attached). 

 

Present:  District 1 – Bruce Prout, present 

District 2 - Brian “Fuzzy” Connell, present 

District 3 – Alan Parish, Warden, present 

District 4 – Clyde Barteaux, present 

District 5 – Lynn Longmire, present 

District 6 – Alex Morrison, absent 

District 7 – David Hudson, present 

District 8 – Michael Gunn, Deputy Warden, present 

District 9 – Wendy Sheridan, present 

District 10 – Brad Redden, present 

District 11 – Diane Le Blanc, present 

 

Also Present CAO David Dick; Municipal Clerk Carolyn Young; other staff W. Atwell, D. Campbell, 

D. Hopkins, C. Mason, B. Orde, and D. Ryan; and 1 member of the public. 

 

Agenda Approval (Order of the Day) 

The Warden noted that this meeting was called to address one item – Nictaux Waste Water Treatment 

Plan Capital Upgrade.  

It was moved by Deputy Warden Gunn, seconded by Councillor Le Blanc, to approve the agenda as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

New Business 
 

Re Nictaux Waste Water Treatment Plant Capital Upgrade  

MOTION 220125.01 Nictaux Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrade 

In accordance with the recommendation of Committee of the Whole, Deputy Warden Gunn 

moved, seconded by Councillor Sheridan, that municipal council approve additional funding 

from the Sewer Reserve in the amount of $25,000 to complete the Nictaux Waste Water 

Treatment Plant capital upgrade Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Adjournment 
Upon motion of Deputy Warden Gunn and Councillor Redden, the meeting adjourned at 1:56 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Warden        Municipal Clerk
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Direction of the Minister 

under a Declared State of Emergency 
(Section 14 of the Emergency Management Act) 

20-008 
 

Under my authority in Section 14 of the Emergency Management Act, I order that this 

Direction (20-008) repeal and replace the Direction regarding municipal meetings issued 

on March 22, 2020. 

 

During the Provincial State of Emergency declared on March 22, 2020, and under the 

authority provided to me in Section 14 of the Emergency Management Act, in addition to 

any other directives I have issued and not repealed or otherwise terminated, I direct that 

all municipalities and villages in the Province: 

 

1. Effective at 8am on July 29, 2020, may hold meetings exclusively in person if all 

the following conditions are met: 

 

i) the total number of persons present does not exceed a gathering limitation imposed 

in a Health Protection Act order; 

 

ii) all physical distancing requirements or other requirements imposed in a Health 

Protection Act order are met. 

 

2. If the conditions set out in (1) cannot be met, the municipality or village must not 

hold meetings exclusively in person and must instead hold the meeting partly or wholly 

as a virtual meeting by video or telephone, and ensure that all of the following conditions 

are met: 

 

i) the total number of persons present for any in person portion of the meeting does 

not exceed a gathering limitation imposed in a Health Protection Act order; and 

 

ii) for any in person portion of the meeting, all physical distancing requirements or 

other requirements imposed in a Health Protection Act order are met. 
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For clarity, this direction does not apply to statutorily required meetings of electors for a 

village commission which are covered under Direction 20-007 issued on May 20, 2020. 

 

Despite this direction, municipalities and villages are still authorized to continue making 

other operational decisions especially those required for service delivery. 

 

Please note that these directions are in addition to any requirements established in a 

Medical Officer's order under the Health Protection Act. 

 

A failure to comply with this direction could result in a summary conviction with 

fines between $500 to $10,000 for individuals and up to $100,000 for a corporation 

per incident. 

 

This direction will remain in place for the duration of the Provincial State of Emergency 

unless it is terminated in writing by me earlier. 

 

Dated July 29, 2020. 

 

Original signed by 

 

Hon. Chuck Porter 

Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
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Municipality of the County of Annapolis – The Commitment 

The Province of Nova Scotia has legislated that all municipal units must have an 

Accessibility Advisory Committee made of over 50 % of persons with disabilities, 

and  a Municipal Accessibility Plan, which provides a process for implementation 

and evaluation toward their mandated timeline of achieving accessibility within 

the province by 2030. 

The original deadline of that plan was April 2021; however, due to COVID 19 and 

the Pandemic, the Municipality of the County of Annapolis requested, and was 

granted an extension to April 1, 2022.  

In March 2021 municipal council approved a report dated March 9th, 2021 

entitled NS Accessibility Act and Impacts on Municipalities, which included 

recommendations for: the creation of a Municipal Accessibility Plan; advertising 

for members of an Accessible Advisory Committee; creation of a budget; and 

action plan to achieve the April 1, 2022 provincial deadline. 

The Municipality of the County of Annapolis approved the Accessibility Advisory 

Committee Policy AM – 1.3.6.17 in April 2021.  

The County’s Accessibility Advisory Committee Policy AM- 1.3.6.17, says “The 

Accessibility Advisory Committee provides advice to Municipal Council on 

identifying, preventing, and eliminating barriers to people with disabilities in 

municipal programs, services, initiatives, and facilities. The committee plays a 

pivotal role in helping the Municipality of the County of Annapolis become an 

accessible community and meet its obligations under Nova Scotia’s Accessibility 

Act.” 

The Nova Scotia Accessibility Act, known as Bill No. 59, was passed in April 2017. 

The legislation aims to make Nova Scotia inclusive and barrier-free by 2030. 

The Annapolis County eight member committee was appointed in June 2021. 

Their first task at hand was to work with staff to create a Municipal Accessibility 

Plan.  The approved plan must be sent to the province before the April 1, 2022.  
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Members of the Annapolis County Accessibility Advisory Committee 

John Smith - Chair 

Christine Garde- Vice Chair 

Caelin Lloyd 

Brenda MacDonald 

Lester Bartson 

Catherine (Jean) Voysey 

Timothy Atkins 

Christina (Tina) Hiltz 

Debra Ryan - Project Lead (Manager of Community Outreach and Tourism) 

Warden Alan Parish - Ex Officio  
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Background  

Nova Scotia was the third province in Canada to enact accessibility legislation, 

after Ontario in 2005 and Manitoba in 2013. The goal of the NS Accessibility Act, 

Bill 59 Act is to prevent and remove barriers that restrict people with disabilities 

from fully participating in society. It enables the government to develop standards 

for accessibility and outlines responsibilities from some public sector bodies, 

including municipalities. As such they required that all municipalities must have 

accessibility plans.  

In September 2018, the province released the Government of Nova Scotia 

Accessibility Plan outlining specific actions for achieving an inclusive, responsive, 

and accessible workplace for NS public servants and ensuring services are 

accessible to all.  

The province created the Accessibility Directorate, which has responsibility for 

administering the Accessibility Act and advancing disability issues within the 

Government. The Government’s strategy for achieving an accessible province by 

2030 is described in Access by Design 2030. 

They have created a number of tools that can be used by municipalities which 

include, “The Accessibility Planning Toolkit for Municipalities. Interim Guidelines 

for Indoor and Outdoor Spaces”. 

The Town of Wolfville piloted Nova Scotia’s first municipal accessibility plan 

(2018) and many municipalities created or have been working on plans to meet 

the April 1, 2022 extended deadline that was given due to COVID 19.  

The province created the Interim Accessibility Guidelines for Indoor and Outdoor 

Spaces , NS Accessibility Directorate, April 2020 and released a draft (January 

2021) Accessibility Standards.  When approved those standards must be 

integrated into Municipal Accessibility Plans. In the meantime, those guidelines 

are meant to influence municipalities in future accessibility planning related to 

the built environment both inside and outside.  
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A disability is defined as “a physical, mental, intellectual, learning or sensory 

impairment, including an episodic disability that, in interaction with a barrier, 

hinders an individual’s full and effective participation in society.”   

A barrier is defined as “anything that hinders or challenges the full and effective 

participation in society of persons with disabilities, including a physical barrier, an 

architectural barrier, an information barrier or communication barrier, an 

attitudinal barrier, a technological barrier, a policy, or a practice.”  

Nova Scotia has the highest rate of disabilities in Canada at 30% versus the 

Canada-wide rate of 22%, so it’s time to make a change.  To be successful there 

has to be a cultural shift and understanding at the political, staff and community 

levels. 

36 of 148 2022-02-15 Council Agenda Package



7 

Annapolis County Accessibility Plan - Vision 

“We envision Annapolis County as a place where the rights, dignity and 

independence of all persons is valued; a place free of racism and prejudice where 

both visible and invisible disabilities are respected; a place where all persons have 

access to community facilities, programs and services to live, work and play to 

experience their full potential. “ 

The County is committed to meeting the needs of individuals who face barriers to 

accessibility in our communities.  
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Areas of Focus That Form the Foundation of the Plan  

The five areas of focus that all municipalities have to address in their accessibility 
plans must include:  

Information and Communication - ensuring all people can receive, understand, 

and share the information they need. To increase awareness and education about 

accessibility rights and opportunities that can benefit the whole community. 

Goods and Services - ensuring that people with disabilities have equitable access 
to goods and services provided by the municipality.  

Built Environment - making public buildings, streets, sidewalks, and shared spaces 
accessible to all.  

Employment - (equitable access) - making workplaces accessible, and supporting 
people with disabilities in finding meaningful employment.  

Transportation - making it easier for everyone to get where they need to go. 

Implementation – including a section on the plan implementation, monitoring 

and evaluation. 
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Methodology 

The Annapolis County Accessibility Plan is based on public consultation feedback, 

review of provincial documents prepared by the NS Accessibility Directorate, and 

best practices to form a comprehensive plan. 

The Advisory Committee hosted three public meetings; four focus group sessions 

[included schools]; events; met with stakeholders; distributed large scale emails; 

and had direct contact with groups and/organizations. Feedback received formed 

the foundation of the plan. 

Public meetings were held on these dates and at these locations:  August 31, 

2021, Bridgetown Volunteer Fire Department, 31 Bay Road, Bridgetown, NS; 

September 8, 2021, Felker Hall Community Centre, Cornwallis Park, NS ; and 

September 23, 2021, Nictaux and District Volunteer Fire Department, 9349 

Highway #10, Nictaux, NS.   

Focus Group sessions took place on these dates and at these locations:  August 

27, 2021, Mountains and Meadows Care Group, Mountain Lea Lodge, 

Bridgetown, NS; September 27, 2021 Bridgetown Regional Community School, 

Bridgetown, NS; October 20, 2021 CORAH, Middleton, NS; October 25, 2021 

Annapolis West Education Centre, Annapolis Royal, NS. 

All facilities were chosen for ease of access by wheelchair and to washrooms, and 

had to include low ramps or flat entrances and accessible washrooms.  

All meetings followed a process of small group discussions centered on five 

questions to address the five focus areas: Information and Communication; Goods 

and Services; Built Environment; Employment; and Transportation. 

Each table had a facilitator and a recorder.  

Overall, living in a COVID reality did impact on the process; however, we were 

fortunate to complete both the public meetings and focus group sessions in 

person following NS Health protocols.  
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On Line Survey that was offered was open to the public for approximately two 

months and advertised in a variety of ways. It gave residents and visitors to the 

county an opportunity to share feedback. 

Promotion took the form of advertisements, and general promotion.  Featured 

stories and/or events were planned to provide greater awareness around the 

accessibility plan and to encourage feedback.  

The Accessibility Advisory committee wanted to create a special event to mark 

the United Nations International Day for Persons with Disabilities on December 3, 

2021, to focus attention on disabilities and to provide another avenue for 

promoting the accessibility plan. The committee teamed up with Annapolis 

County Recreation Services, and that event was held at the Bridgetown Regional 

Outdoor Sport Hub.  

The public process and on-line survey were conducted from August to December 

2021. 

Facility assessments were conducted at 27 indoor and outdoor spaces owned and 

operated by the Municipality so as to understand the overall state of the facilities. 

The assessments were not intended to be formal audits, and not all county-

owned facilities were assessed. All public spaces, indoors and out, were assessed.  

A research scan of documents offered by the Province through the NS 

Accessibility Directorate and other municipalities were reviewed where available.  
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Annapolis County Facility Assessments Overview  

The accessibility planning process has chosen to do assessments rather than 

official audits.  We have used the criteria listed below in our general assessments, 

which are part of “Interim Accessibility Guidelines for Indoor and Outdoor 

Spaces” April 2020 NS Accessibility Directorate. 

The assessments give a general overview of the state of the Municipality’s 

infrastructure; however, more in-depth audits with an accessibility lens must be 

created when planning new infrastructure toward 2030 and beyond. They will be 

shared with municipal staff and many recommendations are included that relate 

to those 27 facility assessments used by the general public.  

Other sites like the Municipal Operations (Public Works) work sites, storage areas, 

and the dog pound were not included in this assessment as they are not open to 

the public. These facilities will need to be considered in the future for 

assessments and/or audits. 

There were general principals used when doing the assessments and they are 

listed below. 

The interim guidelines give some common measurements to be included in the 

general assessments, which include, but are not limited to the following:  

Ramp slope 1:12 (8.3 %) or less is the minimum standard required by CSA. The 

1:20 ratio (5 %) recommended when doing new installs. Typical width for crutches 

(900-950 mm wide) and a standard doorway is 800 mm. A minimum turning 

radius for a manual wheelchair is 1500 mm.  The minimum height of the reach for 

a person in a wheelchair is 400 mm, maximum 1200 mm.  

Very few meet these criteria but they did meet the building code requirements of 

the day.  
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New upgrades will require municipalities to adhere to the “Interim Accessibility 

Guidelines for Indoor and Outdoor Spaces” April 2020 NS Accessibility 

Directorate. 

The NS Interim guidelines are grounded in the following three core principles that 

are key to all accessible planning and future training: 

Whole Journey Approach
All parts of the journey are interlinked and equally important. A single obstacle 
can make it impossible to complete the journey, even if the rest of the way is 
accessible.  

Universal Design
Any environment should be designed to meet the needs of anyone wishing to use 
it, regardless of their age, size, ability or disability. 

Seasonal Maintenance
Seasonal conditions, such as snow and ice, can create barriers to accessibility; 

seasonal maintenance can help to ensure that public spaces are accessible at all 

times. 

There are three principals to follow in audits:  does the feature follow the whole 

journey approach; does this feature reflect the concept of universal design; and is 

there an adequate seasonal maintenance program for this feature?  

In addition, signage, wayfinding, ramps, stairs, handrails are to be strategically 

located to allow individuals of different size, age, and ability to manage a journey. 

Wide ramps (1500mm, or 59 in. minimum) are placed in all pathway points that 

are not level, to allow people with a companion, service animal, or mobility aid to 

complete the journey. Accessible parking spaces are located close to the 

accessibility entrances – usually no more than 30 metres, or 98 feet. 

In newer facilities, exterior pathways and entrances must be designed with 

minimum level changes so that people of all abilities may easily enter or leave. 

Doors should be avoided wherever possible or are as easy as possible to open.
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Actions and Recommendations  

Information and Communication  

Ensuring all people can receive, understand, and share the information they need. 

The Municipality of the County of Annapolis will communicate with persons with 

disabilities regarding the nature of barriers in a respectful and understanding 

manner.  The Municipality will be clear and accessible to people of all ages and 

abilities, and recognizes the definition of accessibility has a broad scope. (NS 

Accessibility Act, Bill 59 was created to ensure all Nova Scotian’s can receive and 

share the same information).  The Municipality will increase awareness and 

provide education about accessibility rights and opportunities that can benefit the 

whole community.  

Information and Communication Actions and Recommendations:  The Plan   

Delivery of Communications
Improve overall communications regarding municipal programs, services and 

events to ensure they are accessible to all persons with disabilities by:   

 ensuring the county’s digital presence (website and social media) and 

information technology systems are designed for people of all ages and 

abilities, and written in plain language; 

 creating a web presence that meets the latest Web Content Accessibility 

guidelines (WCAG) (Presently some features has been added and will be 

assessed accordingly); 

 working to provide American Sign Language (ASL) and/or communication 

Access Real-Time Translation- there are limited interpreters in the region so 

development and training opportunities should be encouraged; 

 understanding CART and making it available where possible. (See definitions in 

Glossary); 

 including braille on council and employee business cards; 

 ensuring that photos and videos used in branding and/or promoting the 

municipality, include persons with some type of mobility device, wheelchair 
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and/or persons with a disability in order to be more representative of the 

population and inclusive; and 

 ensuring that live streaming of council sessions and other council activities are 

fully accessible, and the audio can be heard. 

Provide Training  
The Municipality will provide customer training to employees and volunteers in 

regard to accessibility concerns, understanding plain language and inclusive 

communication. The Accessibility Advisory committee will work in collaboration 

to develop a training manual that is inclusive by nature. Training will include: 

 The NS Accessibility Act, Bill 59 and the requirements under that act and its 

links to the Human Rights Code and the rights of individuals; 

 the role of the Annapolis County Accessibility Committee; 

 awareness of the Annapolis County Accessibility Plan and a commitment to 

follow the intent, vision, and outcomes to meet NS legislated targets of being 

accessible by 2030; 

 how to interact and communicate effectively with persons with disabilities and 

understanding the use of respectful language and body language; 

 understanding the whole journey approach and what universal design means 

to persons with disabilities and the community as a whole; 

 sensitivity training for staff regarding the needs of persons with disabilities 

that is inclusive of service dogs; 

 assessing service delivery through an accessibility lens across the municipality 

in regard to emergency evacuation planning; municipal elections planning; 

recreation programs and events offerings; ensuring tax/utility billing processes 

meet accessibility needs, and new plans are written through an accessibility 

lens that are easy to read and understand; and 

 any new additions where outside consultants, architects are used are required 

to know that the upgrades and/or retrofits are to be designed using the NS 

Interim Accessibility Guidelines for Indoor and Outdoor Spaces or latest 

version. The accessibility committee will be consulted on any upgrades to 
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ensure better communication to follow the intent of the Accessibility Advisory 

Committee Policy AM-1.3.6.17 

Publications
As new publications get created they are to include “this publication available in 

alternate formats upon request” (newsletters, reports of council). 

Phone System  
Add in TTY or RIT (Real time text) A TTY (teletype) to phone systems and cells.  A 

TTY (teletypewriter) is a device that helps people who are deaf, speech-impaired, 

or hard-of-hearing use a phone to communicate. 

Interpretative Signs
New interpretive signs in public areas such as municipal parks and trails, need to 

have a QR code that can incorporate the translation.   

Signage and/or Wayfinding 
Signage for municipally-owned facilities to include the following sign guidelines 

when replacing signs or adding new.  

Accessible signs should be provided for any feature of any building that would 

normally be given a sign that needs to be placed for the general public and staff. 

The most common is Braille, raised print and raised pictograms.  

Communication Font Type
Reporting style needs to have standard text i.e. Ariel or Calibri or other types that 

meet standards.  Create easy to read letters, reports and communications using 

plain language for persons with disabilities to read and understand. 

Communications also need to be available in large print if requested. The 

following is included as a general guideline: 

 Readability for blind, visually impaired, partially sighted guidelines 

o Use a sans serif typeface.  Suitable type faces are Ariel, Calibri, and 

Helvetica; others can be used 

o Avoid the use of italics, underlining and block capitals 

o Lettering should be in title case and/or sentence case 
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o Signs need to have Arabic numbers (1, 2, 3) as per CSA B651-18 (4.R.3a) 

o Ensure the background contrasts with the print.  Clear combinations 

include black text on a white background, white on black, yellow on 

black 

o Do not print information over pictures or patterns 

o The size of the text should be related to distance at which the 

information will be viewed. 

 Readability by Touch 

o Letters should be raised from the surface. 

 Pictograms 

o Use internationally recognized symbols (refer to manual or other NS 

documents) 

 Braille and High-Tactile signs shall be provided in the following places: 

o Washrooms 

o Elevators if they are added in any of our buildings 

o Numbers on stair landing handrail to allow identification of floors (nice 

to have buildings all on one floor) 

o Emergency doors and exits 

o Emergency evacuation instructions 

o Cautionary signage 

o Floor plans at building entrances 

o Identification signs for rooms, titles, names 

 Placement 

o They should be consistently located height and location around a 

building as per CSA B651-18 (4.5.1.a) and they should be positioned to 

avoid shadow and/ or glare 

o Ensure tactile signs can be reached easily 

o Place signs logically as close as possible to the object they are indicating 

o Sign heights in NS Guidelines 

o Avoid suspended signs as they are too high to be read by a low vision 

person
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o Although sandwich boards are popular, they need to be placed carefully 

or eliminated as they can be a safety hazard for persons with a disability

 Contrast 

o Avoid placing signs on busy backgrounds and/or areas with visual clutter

o Ensure the sign contrasts with its background so it can be seen.  For 

example, on a light coloured wall, use a sign with a dark background and 

a light print

o Ensure there is good lighting

o Use non-reflective surfaces and ensure there is no glare

  Layout 

o All text and Braille on signs should be left-aligned and set horizontally 

o Where print and Braille appear on the same sign, place Braille at least 

one inch below the print 

o Always check NS guidelines for latest updates 

o Braille signage details are available through CSA  

Service Animals Signage  
The Municipality welcomes persons with disabilities and their service animals. 

Service animals are allowed on parts of municipal premises that are open to the 

public and include municipal signage. 

Notice of Temporary Disruption  
Notices will be posted in the event of a planned or unexpected disruption or 

closure for all customers. For person with disabilities the signs should be posted 

at the bottom of the ramp or walkway. Postings also include signage in doorways, 

website and Facebook. 

Accessible Service Feedback  
The Municipality will provide methods for public feedback on accessible customer 

service. This will assist in modifying service delivery and provide valuable service. 

(See Plan Implementation). 
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Public meetings and events 
The Municipality coordinates many public meetings, open houses, programs and 

events. Every effort will be made to assess those events through an accessibility 

lens to ensure materials are offered in various formats, accessible signage, 

parking, washroom, and venue access, and/or equipment availability, and that it 

is communicated accordingly in advance. 

Creating recreation opportunities that encourage participation by persons with 

disabilities for programs and/or social gatherings. Is there easy access? Are there 

resting areas for people with disabilities? Are there accessible picnic tables on 

site? Are there quiet areas for those with sensory concerns, and accessible 

signage that can be shared in advance on social media and other 

communications?   

Awareness and Education 
Work with partners locally, regionally, and provincially to communicate and 

create awareness around the rights of persons with disabilities. Create a county-

wide awareness and education campaign that is welcoming and eliminates the 

stigma of having a disability.  

Proclamations 
Create municipal policy additions to recognize National AccessAbility Week 

(NAAW) the end of May annually and International Day of Persons with 

Disabilities in December in any given year.  

Outreach 
Assess the possibility of creating and defining an information hub in Annapolis 

County for accessibility concerns that creates open dialogue and accessible 

opportunities for information. Linked with a disability website and other 

communication links. 

Information Inventory
Create an inventory of opportunities in the county showcasing the type of 

accessible opportunities that exist at the municipal and community level, and 

48 of 148 2022-02-15 Council Agenda Package



19 

include an “Accessible Map” that shows places of interest with accessibility 

designated information. 

Partnerships and Collaboration
Work with regional and provincial partners, agencies, non-profits, and businesses 

to creating a culture shift for ensuring accessible communities, i.e. evaluate 

possibilities for subsidizing internet and phone costs and devices to benefit 

persons with disabilities, etc.

Goods and Services  

Ensuring that people with disabilities have equitable access to goods and services 

provided by the Municipality of the County of Annapolis.  

Good and Services Actions and Recommendations: The Plan 

Municipal Policy 
Apply an accessibility lens to all policy, procedures, practices and program 

offerings. 

Training 
Provide inclusion, accessibility training and awareness for all staff that work with 

the general public in providing goods and services. This will include common 

accessibility language that is fair and equitable. (Refer to Information and 

Communication training).  

Physical Space 
Upon entering a municipal building, physical spaces should be conducive to a 

positive customer service experience. For example, provide a welcoming, calming 

entry, i.e. chairs to rest in and/or wait. 

Procurement 
Research best practices and apply an accessibility lens to procurement processes.

Service delivery recreation programs 
Provide program assessments with an accessibility lens. Continue to provide and 

expand loan programs that include adaptive recreational equipment. Ensure that 
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sound and sensory is included in program assessments ie provide headphones 

that can cancel reduce noise in program offerings, ie fireworks and events.  

Education 
Create an annual abilities fair to showcase the benefits and opportunities 

available in our community and use it as an awareness and educational 

opportunity. 

Social 
Create recreation and social programs directed at persons with disabilities, 

including those with mental health concerns. Persons with intellectual disabilities 

have no opportunity to gather in a programmed activity and more informal social 

opportunities with other agencies and partners would be beneficial.  

Housing
Explore housing support opportunities and work in partnership with others to 

look at creative and affordable solutions to meet the needs of persons with 

disabilities.   

Youth
Supports to family with disabled youth are often overlooked and often not 

considered a municipal responsibility.  Create partnerships and collaborations 

with agencies and levels of government to resolve gaps at the local level that will 

lead to inclusive communities. 

Partnerships 
Work with local agencies and businesses to share concerns of persons with 

disabilities as information is gathered and collected, ie assistance with shopping 

and /or errand delivery from businesses for persons with disabilities. When there 

is more awareness and understanding, creative solutions are often found.  

Built Environment  

Ensuring public buildings, streets, sidewalks, and shared outdoor spaces are 

accessible to all.  
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The NS Interim Accessibility Guidelines for Indoor and Outdoor Spaces, April 2020 

NS Accessibility Directorate are the existing guidelines. Once approved they will 

be the standard that municipalities must follow in regard to upgrades and new 

additions to the built environment.  

The guidelines recommend that three main streams be followed when creating 

and planning for the built environment.

Whole Journey Approach
All parts of the journey are interlinked and equally important. A single obstacle 
can make it impossible to complete the journey, even if the rest of the way is 
accessible.  

Universal Design
Any environment should be designed to meet the needs of anyone wishing to use 
it, regardless of their age, size, ability or disability. 

Seasonal Maintenance
Seasonal conditions, such as snow and ice, can create barriers to accessibility; 
seasonal maintenance can help to ensure that public spaces are accessible at all 
times. 

Built Environment Actions and Recommendations: The Plan 

Barrier Free Access and Timelines 
Ensure that all county-owned buildings and infrastructure have been assessed 

with timelines to achieve the Province of NS deadline of 2030 for meeting NS 

Accessibility Standards that meet the whole journey approach. 

Ensure that renovated buildings meet the NS Interim Accessibility Guidelines for 

Indoor and Outdoor Spaces, April 2020 NS Accessibility Directorate and/ or the 

most current design specifications as approved by the Province of Nova Scotia. 

Ensure new parking areas, sidewalks, crosswalks, curbs, streetscapes, ramps, 

parks, open spaces are planned include integrated accessible design plans, taking 
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into account all accessibilities, i.e. hearing, sensory, mental, physical and include 

adequate seating areas with benches and lighting.  

Municipal buildings in Annapolis Royal and Lawrencetown do require 

improvements as per the general facility assessments.  When renovations and 

upgrades are planned they need to be assessed with the latest provincial 

guidelines and/or adopted standards referenced above.  

The wheelchair ramp in Lawrenctown is the most pending improvement required, 

as well as the development of an accessible paved parking space in front of the 

building (Highway #1) that has easy access from the parking spaces to the new 

building ramp and building itself.  The upper level washroom is not accessible and 

would require rethinking the space. Other improvement suggestions are included 

in the general assessments. 

The Bridgetown Library building owned by the Municipality has had a number of 

accessible upgrades; however, an accessible parking reassessment is required.   

Maintain Barrier Free Access to Buildings and Facilities 
The County of Annapolis will maintain barrier free access in a variety of ways, for 

example:  

 Providing wayfinding signage to building in a consistent manner and not in 

excess; 

 Keeping entrance ways cleared of snow and ice; 

 Keeping hallways and waiting rooms free of clutter i.e. boxes; and 

 Ensuring placement of standing signage (i.e. sandwich boards and caution 

signs for wet floors) is not a tripping hazard for person with canes, mobility 

supports and/or wheelchairs.  

Maintenance
Create work plans and standards for the ongoing repair, maintenance and 

accessibility of sidewalks, crosswalks to meet NS design guidelines on 

accessibility. 
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Improve snow removal capabilities 
Create winter maintenance plans for sidewalks and other pathways.   

Park Maintenance 
Pathways at many of the parks are becoming overgrown; clumps of weeds 

impede flow for persons with mobility issues. Proper maintenance to include 

weed control, erosion control, and keeping pathways flat and clear of debris is 

required. In some circumstances the pathways have become completely 

overgrown with grass - Hebb’s Landing Park and Boat Launch. 

Parking 
Lack of accessible parking is a huge issue throughout Annapolis County. 

Throughout the public process, this was a repeated issue as parking is often not 

central to services, lacks good signage, few areas are paved and provide ease of 

access to the intended building or buildings. Many accessible sites are planned for 

single use and not for side use for vans with a side entrance wheelchair entry and 

exit. 

Ramps
Most ramps in the county do not meet the guidelines and are either too steep or 

too narrow. They do not provide the turnaround zone platform to easily access a 

building safely. They are often an afterthought and not planned well with the 

intended environment and for ease of access.  

Sidewalks and crosswalks
The condition of sidewalks and crosswalks can cause limited access to persons 

with disabilities.  Well-designed sidewalks that are flat, even, and free of 

obstructions with truncated domes at intersections, lighting and benches, all help 

to create an environment for all users.

The Paradise sidewalks are in overall good condition. The Bridgetown sidewalks 

are in need of major assessments and improvements. Granville Ferry sidewalks 

are new, very few improvements are suggested. The Bear River sidewalks are in 

need of upgrades and will require collaboration and discussion with NS 
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Transportation and Infrastructure Renewal, and NS Power for that to be 

improved. Cornwallis sidewalks need attention and there is no consistency in 

linking to crosswalks. 

Sidewalks are often key active transportation routes, are used by all age groups, 

and should include benches. In particular, benches should be added along Church 

Street to Granville Street in Bridgetown for older adults walking from Adult 

Residential Centre, Group Home and/or Mountain Lea Lodge. 

Outdoor Public Spaces
Improve accessibility access to outdoor public spaces such as parks, trails, lakes, 

beaches and playgrounds and create spaces for social gatherings.  

Universal Washroom Design
Ensure universal design for the public to guarantee that accessible and gender-

neutral washroom facilities are built at public parks and trails, and retrofit existing 

washrooms where possible. 

Many washrooms do not have change stations (child or adult) and/or emergency 

buttons and proper spacing for wheelchair turning and general accessible access, 

and have not been planned for visual or sensory needs.

The Bridgetown Regional Outdoor Sports Hub requires universal design accessible 

washrooms that meet the needs of a facility that large.  

Assess the need to have an accessible universal design washroom near the 

downtown core of Bridgetown that is open to the public year round, good lighting 

and benches.   

Bear River has plans for a comfort station (washrooms). Ensure that it has 

universal design to meet accessibility needs with lighting and benches. 

The washrooms at Jubilee Park in Bridgetown do require assessments and flow 

modifications for accessibility in the park overall.  
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Emergencies
Ensure emergency evacuation plans are reviewed accordingly with accessibility in 

mind. 

Parks and Recreation 
Provide assessments of higher profile heavily used parks in more urban settings to 

include paved pathways and adjustments for grades for accessibility, i.e. Sports 

Hub, Jubilee Park and the Annapolis River Causeway Park. Other municipal 

pathways require packed crusher dust aggregate to provide proper drainage and 

compaction and erosion control. All parks and trails should have accessible 

parking and easy flow to picnic areas, washrooms and other amenities.  

Public floating docks need to be assessed to add in modifications for wheelchair 

accessibility for boat launching and/or fishing.  

The Bridgetown tennis courts should be accessible to wheelchair users and have 

easy flow from parking lot to the site.  

Planning for parks should include sensory rest areas for persons with autism and 

other sensory concerns. 

All parks should include wheelchair accessible picnic tables. 

Trails
Due to the nature of some municipal trails such as the Delaps Cove Wilderness 

Trail which has a single uneven path along the Bay of Fundy, the natural 

landscape is not suited to building accessible trail on the entire trail system. The 

Municipality could look at creating an accessible pathway on property they own 

adjacent to the parking lot /trailhead area region with switchbacks to allow for 

viewing on the shore and make the parking area, picnic area and washroom 

accessible.  

Rest Areas 
Provide methods to improve seating along County-owned sidewalks and along 

pathways, trails and parks settings. Parks require rest areas with benches to be 
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planned for parents, caregivers and users so proper care of placement needs to 

be considered for individual families and small groups. Plan sensory quiet places 

away from main equipment and be creative with designs at not only playgrounds 

but parks as well.  

Accessible Picnic Tables
Provide accessible picnic tables at all public venues owned by the County. 

Playgrounds
Create accessible playground equipment at the Nictaux Park and Playground. 

Create accessible playground equipment at Queen Elizabeth II Jubilee Park. 

Replace the pea gravel on the pathway with aggregate that supports persons with 

mobility concerns. 

Arena and Pool
The Bridgetown pool and arena require upgrades to meet accessibility guidelines. 

Canteen areas need to be modified for persons with disabilities, for volunteers, 

and/or staff to work on site. Bridgetown pool needs a lift and ability for easy flow 

of person with disabilities to access the site, park, use a washroom and get into 

the pool.  

The Bridgetown arena washrooms are the biggest impediments as are the change 

rooms.  Easy access and viewing improvements are required, as well as strobe 

lights for persons with hearing impairments, to name only a few.   

Assess the pool and the arena and implement the changes to make both facilities 

accessible.  

Raven Haven Beachside Family Park
Create an accessible parking space closer to the beach and keep the flat hard 

packed pathway free of erosion, branches and picnic tables for connectivity to the 

Mobi Mat (accessibility mat that provides stability for persons with disability to 

travel over the sandy beach to the water).  
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Create a landing area for fishing opportunities, and flat, easy connective areas to 

the designated fishing area from the parking area. The canteen area needs to be 

assessed for serving persons in wheelchairs and small children.  

Cornwallis Beach
The tidal beach at Cornwallis borders municipally-owned lands and has been an 

informal destination for residents of all ages. There have been many requests to 

create accessible opportunities here. Assess and create accessible opportunities 

to the tidal beach at Cornwallis in cooperation with other stakeholders.  

Access the potential of other beaches in the region from parking, access to the 

beach, and landing areas to benefit folks with disabilities, and for the benefit of 

the whole population for viewing sunsets and water bodies, having a picnic with 

family and/or friends.  

Signage
Signage is covered under information and communications; however, once 

established, signs need to be at a height that is easily seen for persons with 

disabilities.  

Funding 
The built environment has the highest price tag for creating barrier free designs in 

communities and at municipally-owned facilities. Both federal and provincial 

governments have funding supports for improving accessible opportunities in the 

community. Creative linkage with accessible grants, age-friendly funding and 

funding for active transportation can be used to assist with costs in creating 

whole community designs that benefit all. 

Business Opportunities 
The study showed gaps in accessible opportunities in many communities in the 

region for accessing services such as stores, restaurants, dental services, vet 

services, churches, museums, to name only a few. Although this is not under the 

Municipality’s jurisdiction, municipal units can assist in sharing information on 

accessibility resources, i.e. design standards, funding, etc. 
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Housing
Lack of affordable housing, shortages in housing options, and need for more 

independent living were seen as barriers for people living with disabilities. Often 

housing is not on the municipal agenda; however, the creation of partnerships 

and collaborations can go a long way to look at opportunities that address this 

gap. There are many agencies and support organizations that can assist with this, 

and the volunteer sector that can make a difference.

Employment  

Creating opportunities to make workplaces accessible, and support people with 
disabilities to find meaningful employment.  

Provide equitable access to jobs with the Municipality. 

Employment: Actions and Recommendations: The Plan 

Leadership
Provide the leadership and role modeling to create meaningful employment 

opportunities and share the learned experiences. 

Community Outreach/ Navigator 
Create a position with the Municipality dedicated to promoting inclusion, training 

staff, and creating opportunities for community outreach, with a goal of creating 

a culture shift of inclusion, promoting equitable opportunities, working to break 

down barriers throughout the region. Work in partnership with the Accessibility 

Advisory Committee and local, regional and provincial representatives including 

community and business stakeholders. 

Culture of Inclusion 
Build capacity with municipal staff to cultivate a culture of inclusion that supports, 

retains, and provides opportunities for career growth for persons with disabilities 

and provide the necessary training needed to be successful.  
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Job Opportunities 
Improve opportunities for persons with disabilities to gain employment with the 

Municipality by ensuring job postings clearly state they are open to people with 

disabilities and to assess other ways to reach persons with disabilities, i.e. larger 

print. 

Hiring 
Improve processes, policies, and practices to facilitate and encourage the 

recruitment, selection, transition, and advancement of persons with disabilities in 

their employment at the Municipality. Provide opportunities for youth with 

disabilities to apply for summer positions. 

Flexibility 
Improve support and flexibility in the workplace by ensuring municipal staff and 

council members with disabilities have access to adaptive technologies in the 

workplace, supportive structure, and a flexible work environment i.e. ability to 

work from home, flex hours, and other supports. 

Recognition 
Create internal and external recognition programs recognizing those who support 

the hiring of persons with disabilities and promote role models for the 

community.  

Transportation  

 Making it easier for everyone to get where they need to go. 

Transportation Actions and Recommendations: The Plan 

Transit Infrastructure and supports- 
Explore existing (Kings Transit and Annapolis County Trans County Transportation) 

and alternative transportation that is affordable to persons with disabilities, ie 

smaller buses, taxis opportunities and /or improving public transportation 

through the lens of persons with disabilities. 
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Affordability
Explore a subsidized transit fares and/or transit passes for persons with 

disabilities and low income in partnerships with other municipal units, levels of 

government and agencies.   

Training

Influence and encourage the training of staff who transport persons with 

disabilities to understand their needs and concerns. 

Transit Stops
Create shelters when and where possible, and have benches at bus stops in the 

County. 

Snow Removal 
Improve snow clearance at transit stops and collaborate with partners 

accordingly. 

Active Transportation and Pedestrian Infrastructure 
Improve connectivity in communities by improving pedestrian infrastructure 

where possible and link the needs of persons with disabilities to the County’s 

Active Transportation Plan and planning for Age-Friendly Communities targeted at 

walkers, cyclists, persons in wheelchairs, etc. 

Create paved shoulders, pathways and improved safe sidewalks in communities 

to benefit walkers, cyclist and persons with disabilities. See Built Environments 

section for other supports, i.e. parking and sidewalks. 

Funding Supports
Explore creative funding supports to create age-friendly communities and active 

transportation networks that benefit the whole community.   

Implementation Actions and Recommendations: The Plan  

The Accessibility Advisory Committee and County staff were tasked with the 

responsibility of creating the first Accessibility Plan that was mandated by the 

Province of Nova Scotia to ensure that the province is fully accessible by 2030. 
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The plan will be submitted to the Province in March 2022 to meet the deadline 

that was extended due to COVID 19.  

As with any plan it needs to be operationalized and have an integrated approach 

to dealing with accessibility in the Municipality across all service groups. 

Responsibilities
Municipal Council is responsible for adopting and overseeing the Annapolis 

County Accessibility Plan. 

The Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) is responsible for implementing the plan, 

assigning staff to work on accessibility who will work with senior staff for the 

ongoing implementation of the plan.  

The CAO accessibility-designated staff person shall coordinate efforts and liaise 

with the Accessibility Advisory Committee. 

The Accessibility Advisory Committee is responsible for giving feedback and 

providing recommendations to municipal council as per the municipal policy. 

All parties recognize the significant cost of implementation. Operational plans and 

all parties need to seek funding support from various levels of government to 

assist in creating an accessible and inclusive municipality.  

Monitoring 
The Accessibility Advisory Committee will prepare an annual accessibility report 

card for council at the end of each fiscal year starting in March 2023. The report 

card will measure the performance of the actions in this plan in cooperation with 

the accessibility staff person. The advisory committee can also make 

recommendations to improve the plan.  

The Accessibility Report Card is a public document and will be posted on the 

County website once accepted by municipal council.  
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Evaluating 
The plan needs to be reviewed at least every three years as required by the 

Province and the Accessibility Act, Bill 59.  

The Council and CAO are responsible to lead the public review and evaluation of 

the Accessibility Plan before April 2025 in consultation with the Accessibility 

Advisory Committee.  

Responding to Questions, Concerns and/or Complaints 
Anyone can lodge a complaint, pose a question, or express a concern about 

accessibility in the Municipality of the County of Annapolis. These should be 

directed to the CAO. 

The CAO or designate will respond within a reasonable time. Before responding, 

the CAO will consult with the person(s) responsible for the area of inquiry. The 

response will include reasons for the decision and will share information and/or 

consult with the Accessibility Advisory Committee if required. 

The CAO or designate shall keep all records of complaints, questions, and 

concerns submitted to them, and will provide summary updates to the 

Accessibility Advisory committee on a regular basis.  

These updates will become part of the advisory committee’s continual review of 

the Accessibility Plan, and may form the foundation of future changes.  

Anyone can appeal to Council if they are not satisfied with the response from the 

CAO. CAO or Council may refer appeal to the Accessibility Advisory Committee for 

additional review and recommendations before issuing a final response to the 

complainant.  
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Glossary of Terms 

Understanding the words in the document  

ACAAC: Annapolis County Accessibility Advisory Committee.  

Accessibility Assessment: Not an official audit but an overview assessments to 

allow for more informed decisions when making recommendations in the County 

of Annapolis Accessibility Plan. 

Active Transportation: Active transportation refers to all human-powered forms 

of transportation, in particular walking and cycling. It includes the use of mobility 

aids such as wheelchairs, and can also encompass other active transport 

variations such as in-line skating, skateboarding, cross-country skiing, and even 

kayaking. Active transportation can also be combined with other modes, such as 

public transit.  (Definition adopted in Annapolis County Active Transportation Plan 

2015)  

Active transportation encourages governments of all levels to plan well to engage 

more residents and visitors in creating active communities to work, to school and 

to play.  

Age-Friendly Communities: In an age friendly community, the polices , services 

and structures related to the physical and social environment are designed to 

help seniors “ age actively “ many of the age friendly recommendations and 

funding programs support sidewalks that are well lit and building with automatic 

door openers and elevators so it is complementary to providing accessible 

communities.   

Appeal: Make a formal request to clarify or change a decision. 

ASL: American Sign Language: Related to hearing or sensing sound. Requires 

translators that interpret through facial expression as well as movements and 

motions with the hands. It serves as the predominate sign language of Deaf 

communities.   
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Assistive listening devices: An assistive listening device is part of a system used to 

improve hearing ability for people in a variety of situations where they are unable 

to distinguish speech in noisy environments. 

Audits: An accessibility audit is an inspection of indoor and outdoor public spaces 

to systematically evaluate their accessibility for people of all ages and abilities. 

The key findings should inform commitments for the built environment when new 

retrofits are planned or built. 

Barrier: Something that makes it harder for some people to participate. Nova 

Scotia’s Accessibility Act defines a barrier as “anything that hinders or challenges 

the full and effective participation in society of persons with disabilities, including 

a physical barrier, an architectural barrier, an information or communications 

barrier, an attitudinal barrier, a technological barrier, a policy or a practice.” 

Braille: A reading and writing system for people who are blind or visually 

impaired.  

CSA: Canadian Standards Association. The B651HB-18 specifications may be 

adopted by NS in terms of Accessibility in the Built Environment.  

CART: Communication Access Real-time Translation. Delivers captions remotely to 

any screen in real time, also known as live captioning. It is live, word for word 

transcription of speech to text so that individuals can read what is being said in 

group settings and at personal appointments on a laptop or a large screen. CART 

services can be provided on site or remotely. It enables culturally Deaf, oral deaf, 

deafened and hard of hearing people to have visual access to the spoken word. 

(Source Canadian Hearing Services) 

Council: Municipality of the County of Annapolis Council. 

Disability: Nova Scotia’s Accessibility Act, Bill 59 defines Disability as the 

following: “a physical, mental, intellectual, learning or sensory impairment, 

including an episodic disability that, in interaction with a barrier, hinders an 
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individual’s full and effective participation in society.” It can be a condition that 

makes it harder for a person to participate.  

EMO: Emergency Management Office.  

Equitable/equity: A commitment to fairness. Equitable access is different from 

equal access. Equality means everybody is treated the same; equity means 

everybody is treated fairly, based on their needs and abilities. 

FCM: Federation of Canadian Municipalities 

Infrastructure: The “underlying structure” that makes a place liveable and keeps 

its systems working (e.g., roads, sewers, clean water, electricity, parks and more).  

International Day of Persons with Disabilities (IDPD):  This is a UN day that is 

celebrated every year on 3 December. The day is about promoting the rights and 

well-being of persons with disabilities at every level of society and development, 

and to raise awareness of the situation of persons with disabilities in all aspects of 

political, social, economic, and cultural life. World Health Organization joins the 

UN in observing this day each year, reinforcing the importance of securing the 

rights of people with disabilities, so they can participate fully, equally and 

effectively in society with others, and face no barriers in all aspects of their lives. 

NS Interim Accessibility Guidelines for Indoor and Outdoor Spaces: A document 

created by the NS Accessibility Directorate in April 2020 and when completed will 

be the provincial accessibility standards for the built environment. The guidelines 

are not mandatory, but they can help public sector bodies begin their accessibility 

planning and be better prepared to meet the provincial standard when it is 

enacted.  

National AccessAbility Week (NAAW):  Every year, starting on the last Sunday in 

May, Canadians celebrate National AccessAbility Week (NAAW). Founded as 

‘National Access Awareness Week’ in 1988 and inspired by Rick Hansen’s Man In 

Motion World Tour, this week is an opportunity to celebrate Canadians with 
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disabilities and raise awareness of the critical need for accessibility and inclusion 

for all in our communities and workplaces.  

NSBC: Nova Scotia Building Code: “Building Code Act” or “Act” means Chapter 46 

of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989, the Building Code Act. 

NBC: National Building Code: A collection of rules and regulations adopted by 

authorities having appropriate Jurisdiction to control the design and construction 

of buildings, alternation, repair, quality of materials, use and occupancy, and 

related factors of buildings within their jurisdiction; contains minimum 

architectural, structural and mechanical standards for sanitization, public health, 

welfare, safety , and the provision of light and air. 

NSFM: Nova Scotia Federation of Municipalities. Represents the provincial 

interest of local government. 

Pedestrian: A person walking outside or using an assistive device outside to travel 

at a walking speed.  

Plain language: Language a reader or listener can understand easily and 

completely.  

QR Code: A type of Matric barcode.  A barcode is a machine- readable optical 

lapel that can contain information about an item to read and/or to hear in some 

circumstances.  

Real Time Text: Telecommunication device on phone systems and cells. A TTY 

(teletypewriter or text telephone) is a device that helps people who are deaf, 

speech-impaired, or hard-of-hearing use a phone to communicate. The device 

translate words into text.  

Retrofit: To add features that were not included in the original design.  

RHF: Rick Hansen Foundation. 
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RHFAC: Rick Hansen Foundation Accessibility Certification. (Learn more at 

www.rickhansen.com/become-accessible/rating-certification) 

Tactile: Related to the sense of touch. The word “tactile” refers to the sense of 

touch. 

Tactile signs: A tactile sign is any sign that can be read by touch. Braille, raised 

print and raised symbols or pictograms are examples of tactile elements used on 

signs. Doors and openings that lead to public spaces should be identified by tactile 

signage including stairways. 

Truncated domes: (AKA detectable warnings, tactile paving, detectable warning 

surfaces) are ground surface indicators designed to assist and warn pedestrians 

who are blind or visually Impaired. Truncated domes feature a unique pattern of 

cones that are easily detected by a cane or foot, alerting the visually impaired to 

the presence of a street or sudden drop - off.  

WCAG: Web Content Accessibility Guidelines.  

(Learn more at www. w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag) 
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Conclusion  

The Annapolis County Accessibility Advisory Committee took six months to create 

the Annapolis County Accessibility Plan.  

The plan is grounded in public input and collaborations and was presented in 

draft form in January 2022 to the Municipality of the County of Annapolis Council. 

That draft January document included the public consultation results in the 

Appendix section.  Due to its length, the Appendix is not included in the final 

report.  
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Recommendation 

from 2022-01-25 Special Committee of the Whole 

To 2022-02-15 Council 

 

 

8.1  Future Operation of Raven Haven Beachside Family Park  

THAT municipal council authorize the CAO to prepare a long-term plan for future 

operation of Raven Haven as a Day Use Park commencing in 2022-23. 
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Recommendations 

From 2022-02-08 Committee of the Whole 

To 2022-02-15 Municipal Council 
 

8.2 Former Bridgetown Town Hall  

THAT Municipal Council begin the process to register the former Bridgetown Town Hall as a 

municipal heritage property and that the former Town Hall property not be sold until the 

registration process is completed, in accordance with the recommendation of Committee of the 

Whole.  
 

8.3 St. Andrews Church Substantial Alteration Application 

THAT municipal council approve the St. Andrew’s Anglican Church application for substantial 

alteration to replace the amber window glass with clear glass, encouraging the applicant to retain 

some of the amber glass in the gothic revival windows on the north and south side of the building 

as much as possible, pursuant to the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.   
 

8.4 Intermunicipal Emergency Services Agreement 

THAT Municipal Council approve the Inter-municipal Emergency Services Agreement, in 

accordance with the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  
 

8.5 C6 Regional Emergency Management Bylaw 

THAT Municipal Council give first reading to approve the C6 Regional Emergency Management 

Bylaw, pursuant to the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  

 

8.6 Letter of Request to Minister Responsible for Emergency Management 

THAT Municipal Council approve forwarding the letter of request to the Minister Responsible for 

Emergency Management (Honourable John Lohr), in accordance with the recommendation of 

Committee of the Whole. 
 

8.7 Victoria Hamilton Appointment 

THAT municipal council appoint Victoria Hamilton as a Development Officer for the 

Municipality of the County of Annapolis to administer the Municipality’s Land Use Bylaws and 

Subdivision Bylaw, pursuant to the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  

 

8.8 Brendan Lamb Appointment  

THAT municipal council appoint Brendan Lamb as a Development Officer for the Municipality 

of the County of Annapolis to administer the Municipality’s Land Use Bylaws and Subdivision 

Bylaw, in accordance with the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  

 

8.9 Municipally- Registered Heritage Property Clarence Community Hall Application for 

Substantial Alterations  

THAT municipal council refer the substantial alteration application to replace the roof and exterior 

trim boards for Clarence Community Hall, 3337 Clarence Road, to the Heritage Advisory 

Committee, pursuant to the recommendation of Committee of the Whole.  

 

8.10 Request Proposal from Western Woodlot Services Cooperative 

THAT municipal council request a proposed operating plan from Western Woodlot Services 

Cooperative with respect to an ecological management process of a 15-20 Hectare section of the 

Greywood site (PID 05091152), in accordance with the recommendation of Committee of the 

Whole. 
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Annapolis County 4H Council  

2020/2021 Annual Report 

 

Annapolis County 4H managed a second modified year as a result of Covid restrictions. 

We were able to host a successful virtual County Rally where members presented their 

speeches and demonstrations, and ambassadors were selected to represent our county. 

Winners were able to move on to compete at the regional level, and some moved on to 

the provincial level. We were thrilled to have our county ambassador, Brianna Hiltz, 

move on and win to become the 4H Ambassador for Nova Scotia.  

Our clubs were able to have face to face project meetings this year. Members were able 

to showcase their projects at a joint Achievement Day held at the Annapolis Valley 

Exhibition grounds in August. Livestock members were able to demonstrate their 

showmanship skills, and members participated in a scavenger hunt. Council leaders 

organized a corn boil and barbeque for the members at which completion ribbons were 

handed out. The members enjoyed the opportunity to get together as a group and to 

celebrate their accomplishments. 

We were so proud of the dedication and perseverance of our members, despite the 

challenges they faced. We are hopeful the 2021/2022 year will provide more 

opportunities to engage members in activities that resemble a normal 4H year. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lisa Barteaux 

President 

Annapolis County 4H Council 
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Annapolis County Federation of Agriculture Annual Report 2021 

 

This past year saw a great harvest. We had a good spring for planting with some rain, mostly when we 

needed it but not always. This year can be described as hotter over all, especially the fall. The gardens 

have grown well, the orchards are plentiful and the hay is never ending.  All in all, we’ve had a high 

yielding year. Production costs are up – but what year aren’t they? 

 

Covid 19 is still with us and it affects us all in many different ways, making our jobs more difficult.  

Nova Scotia has had it easier than most provinces but it is still a challenge. 

 

The Annapolis Valley Exhibition has suffered greatly. Some small events were held but, with 

provincially imposed regulations, not enough people were allowed to participate to make these 

events profitable. Indeed, it was very difficult to generate income under the Covid restrictions. 

I would like to commend the staff and many volunteers for their efforts during this challenging time. 

 

The Exhibition and the Annapolis County Federation are working to prepare for the future. 

The Directors of the County Federation hired consulting firm, Novita Interpares, to help in areas where 

we lack specific skills. We appreciate the experience they bring, contributing to a larger view of our 

operation. They have helped us realize the changes that need to be made. We have been very fortunate 

that they have volunteered to stay with us pro bono to further these ideas and expand on what or who 

can move us forward. We have achieved much more than any of us could have imagined, leading us to 

a solid hope for the future. 
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Of the many participating volunteers, we want to specifically remember two in this county who passed 

on this year. Robert Hall was a big supporter and volunteer of the Annapolis Valley Exhibition in 

particular.  He was known and beloved to many of us.  Tim Hennigar was a member of this federation.  

He did a lot to help, both locally and provincially.  Tim was a strong supporter of the Agricultural 

industry and was always willing to help. Both Robert and Tim will be greatly missed. 

 

The directors have regularly met every month either in person or on-line. The Nova Scotia Federation 

of Agriculture provincial representative in our area has joined us for many meetings, keeping us 

informed and up to date on their activities. Department of Agriculture representatives also participate in 

board meetings, bringing their knowledge and suggestions to support the agricultural community.  The 

directors continue to work with the membership, keeping their best interests in mind. 

 

The Board of Directors is interested in increasing communication and forging a better relationship 

between the Federation of Agriculture membership, the Municipality of Annapolis, and the general 

public of Annapolis County.  Thank you for your assistance and for your support. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Danny Bruce 

President 

Annapolis County Federation of Agriculture 
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Annapolis County Ground Search and Rescue 
PO Box 234 

Bridgetown, NS 
B0S 1C0 

www.acgsar.ca 
 

To the Council of the Municipality of the County of Annapolis: 
 
Annapolis County Ground Search and Rescue has 42 active members, all 
volunteers with a variety of specialties and expertise, and all certified in ICS 100 
or above, with current vulnerable sector clearance and first aid training.   
 
In 2021, our team celebrated 45 years of service to our community. 
 
The core mandate of Annapolis County Ground Search and Rescue (ACGSAR) is to 
locate missing persons at the request of the RCMP.  We are also available to 
provide assistance during civil emergencies when needed by the Provincial or 
Regional Emergency Management Office. 
 
During 2021, we were requested by the RCMP to search on only one occasion, for 
a missing senior in Bridgetown.    We also provided mutual aid on five occasions 
to Lunenberg and Valley (Kings County) Search and Rescue to search for missing 
persons in their respective counties. 
 
In addition to searching for lost community members, we also provide 
preventative programs.  For example, ACGSAR is partnered with Project 
Lifesaver, an organization that provides vulnerable people prone to wandering 
(such as dementia or autism) with a small radio transmitter they wear as a 
bracelet.  We currently serve six clients in Annapolis County.  Should they wander 
off, our team is alerted, and we immediately dispatch to the area with our 
electronic Receivers to locate the radio signal, and thus our client. 
 
In 2021 we were able to train seven of our members to be qualified Electronic 
Search Specialists (ESS) for Project Lifesaver, and 4 members are also now 
qualified ESS Instructors.  We provide our clients with the bracelets, change the 
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batteries monthly on their transmitters, and do random checks to ensure we are 
consistently picking up signals.  We also train frequently to keep our ESS 
members sharp and make sure our equipment is always functioning. 
 
ACGSAR also presents the Hug-A-Tree program to students.  This interactive 
presentation teaches children how to prevent being lost, and what they should do 
if they are in the woods and become disoriented.  Covid restrictions limited our 
ability to go into schools in 2021, but we were able to provide the program to 
over 40 children and youth at the Town of Middleton’s day camp in August. 
 
Despite Covid restrictions, we were still able to train our members frequently in 
2021to make sure we are all proficient in the use of map and compass, GPS, first 
aid, radio communications, tracking and wilderness survival.  Our training 
highlight for 2021 was an extensive event in November: a mock-search in the 
Medway Community Forest with our neighboring GSAR teams from Lunenberg 
and North Queens.  Since most of our searches include mutual aid from our 
adjacent counties, it’s advantageous to train together and become familiar with 
their personnel and equipment. 
 
We had to become creative in our fundraising efforts and found some success 
with online sales of First Aid supplies. Our online Storm Raffles with a prize of a 
72-hr emergency kit, radio, water, and storm chips have become quite popular in 
the county.  We’ve been launching these just before a big weather event, and 
tickets sell quickly! 
 
We appreciate the County’s continued support of our organization and look 
forward to serving you in 2022. 
 
 
Many thanks, 
 

Diane Heaton 
 
Diane Heaton 
Acting President 
Annapolis County Ground Search and Rescue 
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Annapolis RCMP District 
Annual report 
2021 
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I extend greetings from myself and our Acting Commanding Officer Chief Superintendent Chris 
Leather along with our District Policing Officer, Superintendent Dan Morrow.  
 
I would like to show my appreciation to the elected officials, of Annapolis County for your ongoing 
support. This past fall I was able to meet with the Warden, Mr. Alan Parish and the CAO Mr. David 
Dick. With the ongoing impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic, we were able to squeeze in a quick 
meeting to formally meet and discuss some ongoing topics. I look forward to meeting the rest of 
the elected officials and continuing to build on positive working relationships in the near future. 
 
2021 continued to be an interesting year as the pandemic continued to roll along. It effected 

our communities and in turn impacted policing in the County of Annapolis. The RCMP 

continued to adapt its approach in all facets of our duties to ensure the safety of the residents 

of the county and the members of the RCMP. 

In 2021, the RCMP Provincial and District priorities were Road Safety, Crime Reduction, and 

Cybercrime. 

- Road Safety effectiveness continued through visibility via check-stops, traffic 

enforcement, and education. The County noted a 16% increase in reported collisions 

from 2020. I am confident that the increased collisions over the previous year was due 

to more traffic flow with the relaxed health restrictions, therefore more vehicles on the 

roadways. It does not highlight a concern. In addition, there was approximately 246 

Summary Offence Tickets issued for various offences which is on track from the previous 

year. 

- Crime reduction initiatives continued to see a focus on prolific offender management. 

These included regular door-knocks to ensure abidance of Conditional Sentence Orders 

(CSO) such as curfew times, drug/alcohol abstinence etc. even through the pandemic. 

- Cybercrime continued into 2021 and Annapolis County continued to be impacted. Over 

2021, it was noted how the individuals conducting the scams changed tactics and ways to 

seek to complete the frauds. The Annapolis County Senior Safety Coordinator was a 

significant help in seeking to educate and support our most vulnerable seniors in the 

various fraud schemes. There was an information pamphlet that was circulated 

throughout the whole county highlighting the scams that were making its rounds and 

ways to avoid being a victim of these crimes. 

In Annapolis District, we continue to be able to leverage our various supports in that we had the 

means to address priorities using frontline, first response members. This was alongside our Street 

Crime Enforcement Unit (SCEU), School Safety Resource Officer (SSRO), Community Programs 
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Officer, and Senior Safety Coordinator (SSC). Having these folks all under one roof continues the 

path of a collaborative and proactive approach to address crime trends, traffic, school, and senior 

safety issues.  

Our Street Crime Enforcement Unit (SCEU) were impacted by COVID-19.  Numerous 
investigations were initiated by continuing to seek intelligence on the local drug traffickers as 
well as suspects in many other types of crimes. 
 

 

2021 RCMP Highlights 
 

 
 

Calls for Service 
 

Total – 4787 
 

 
Road Safety 

 

 246 Provincial Summary Offence Tickets (SOTS); 

 159 Warnings; 

 58 Check-Points; 

 23 Impaired Driving Charges & 4 Roadside Suspensions 

 84 Provincial Summary Offence Tickets (SOTS)  & 17 Warnings* 
 

*Southwest Nova Traffic Services works out of New Minas and supports Annapolis County in road safety initiatives. 
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Criminal Records Checks 

 1121 Criminal Records Checks completed in 2021. 

 

Prisoners 

70 prisoners this year in Bridgetown. 

 

Resources 

 Currently we have 22 employees; Paternity/Maternity – 1; 

o 3 Detachment Assistants. 

o Community Programs: 1, Senior Safety: 1 

 

Vehicles 

 7 Marked police vehicles 

 4 unmarked police vehicles 

 2 ATV(s) & 2 bicycles 

 

 

School and Community Programs 
 

Our School Safety Resource Officer, Community Programs Officer, and Senior Safety 

Coordinator continue to be community leaders who have an impact on our youth and seniors. 

Even through the drastic effects of the COVID-19 virus, our community employees continued to 

seek to engage our youth and our seniors. I invite you to see their individual and impressive year-

end submissions contained in the printed annual report. 
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Community Programs Officer 
 

The goal of the Community Program Officer (CPO) position is to provide an informed, timely, 

meaningful and appropriate response to youth issues and trends-to provide the right service, to 

the right youth, at the right time.   

The CPO represents the RCMP on a variety of committees such as Crime Stoppers, 

Neighborhood Watch, School Advisory Committees, Family Matters board, Health Promoting 

Schools Committee, Schools Plus, the Annapolis County Youth Hub and MADD. He continues to 

be the point of contact for Police week, county parades, Keji and the Lawrencetown Exhibition.  

Here are some of the highlights that our CPO was involved in over the 2021 year: 

WITS/LEADS -  Continued to support and deliver the Anti Bullying campaign, acronyms standing 

for W-walk away I- Ignore T - talk it out S – seek help/ L – look and listen E – explore points of 

view A – act D – did it work S – seek help. This was delivered to the local schools in the Annapolis 

County. 

Botvin Life Skills Training – This is a new comprehensive substance abuse program being piloted 

in 3 provinces (New Brunswick, Alberta and Manitoba). This could be the replacement for the 

DARE program that had been delivered over a number of years across Canada . Currently the CPO 

in Annapolis County is engaged on a national level in overseeing the program.  

 

Since February 2021, the Annapolis CPO has been working with National Youth Services. This 

national program allowed him to oversee the Life Skills Training program, create a podcast, 

assisted with the creating of a bicycle safety colouring book as well as other side projects. This is 

in addition to his regular duties of active engagement in the county with all of the regular duties 

Podcast – Created a RCMP podcast, based on interviews with RCMP and community members 

focusing on the RCMP or RCMP priorities.  

The CPO continued with the Cram the Cruiser campaign. This is the yearly food bank drive here 

in Annapolis County to support our local food banks with donations and funds.  

In addition, the Annapolis RCMP CPO organized a Middleton Regional High School vs First 

responders’ hockey game.  Police, Paramedics and Firefighters joined together to play the game, 

and raised money for the local domestic violence shelter. 
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The goal of the Annapolis County Seniors Safety Program is to promote the safety, security, and 

well-being of seniors in Annapolis County. Working along side the RCMP, the program offers 

residents a safe and trusted place to turn when looking for information, support, and advocacy 

to enhance their well-being, as well as their ability to remain living safety and securely in their 

own homes, and connected and engaged in their communities. 

The flexible service delivery model makes it one of the most accessible services in the 

community, with the ability to provide support to residents in a way that is helpful and 

meaningful, and always tailored to the individual needs and circumstances of each situation.  

The program accepts direct referrals, has 

limited age restrictions for eligibility, is 

provided free of charge, and is brought to 

the home of the client, thereby removing 

all accessibility and transportation barriers 

in the community.   

 

Crime Prevention & Safety Promotion 
 

Through the close working relationships with our policing partners, the Seniors Safety Program 

is able to bring crime prevention and safety information into the homes of seniors. 

Program benefits include: 

 Police can make direct referrals for clients and consult for appropriate file follow up, 

linking seniors to programs and support services in the community. 

 The Seniors Program can seek police support on matters of safety & crime prevention 

 Joint visits between Seniors Safety and Policing can be made to support clients 

 Feedback from our community helps to inform and update policing initiatives, including 

Crime Prevention Strategies, Fraud & Scam Prevention, Cyber Security Initiatives, 

Driving & Road Safety Promotion, and Elder Abuse Awareness & Prevention Strategies 

 Community presentations are held on these topics to enhance safety, education, and 

awareness, and to collaborate with the community on crime prevention initiatives 

  

Annapolis County Seniors Safety Program 

2021 Annual Report 

 

 

Senior Safety provides in home visits, 

tailored to the needs of clients, and is 

delivered free of charge. 

Annapolis County Seniors Safety 
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Working With Our Community Partners 
 

The Seniors Safety Program also works closely with many community partners to promote the 

safety and well-being of seniors in our community.  Our partners include: Housing Nova Scotia, 

Western Regional Housing Authority, Continuing Care, Collaborative Practice Health Care 

Teams & Social Workers, Seniors LINCS, Community Mental Health, Seniors Mental Health, 

Women’s  Resource Centre, Health Care Partners at ACHC, SMH, Valley Regional, Palliative 

Care, Fundy Dental, Legal Aid, Community Lawyers, Adult Protection, Banking Community, MPs 

Office, MLAs Office, Crime Stoppers, Valley Restorative Justice, Church Community, Service 

Clubs and organizations throughout Annapolis County, 211 NS, and the Centre of Rural Aging 

and Health at the Middleton Campus of the NSCC. 

The Seniors Safety Program is very pleased to be working and collaborating with the Centre of 

Rural Aging and Health at the Middleton Campus of the NSCC. Since the centre opened its 

doors in the fall of 2020, our program has worked closely with CORAH Project Coordinator, 

Heather McCormick, to continue to deliver important safety and crime prevention outreach.  

This continues to be important in 2021 as we 

entered the second year of the Covid -19 

pandemic.  CORAH has continued to provide 

our program the opportunity to safely deliver 

and navigate programing by having all the 

safety, sanitizing, screening, booking, and 

contact tracing protocols that are required in 

order to host community events during the 

Covid-19 pandemic. Through continued 

collaboration with CORAH, the Seniors Program 

delivered sessions on Fraud & Scam Prevention; 

Legal Information Sessions on Powers of 

Attorney, Personal Care Directives, Wills & 

Estate Planning; Safety Tips for Women; and 

community resources. These sessions were 

expanded to the community satellite sites of 

Cornwallis and Centrelea that are also linked to CORAH.  Each session was very well attended, 

many needing to be held twice to accommodate the number of registrations, and all received 

very positive reviews from audience feedback.  

Along with the ability to host and offer presentations, the Seniors Program also has an office at 

the CORAH site, which allows clients the opportunity to book in-person meetings, as well as the 

use of the board room for larger group meetings and conferences.  
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The Seniors Program works to ensure that every 

senior is aware of the services and supports available 

to help them live safely and independently in their 

own home. Community presentations are available on 

Cyber Security & Online Safety, Consumer Fraud & 

Scam Prevention, Social Media Safety & Identity Theft 

Protection, Legal Information for Seniors & Their 

Families, Personal Safety & Home Security, Driving & 

Road Safety, and Elder Abuse Awareness & 

Prevention.   

These presentations have been very well received in 

the community.  Participants often share that the information from these presentations has 

kept them safe, well informed, and allowed them to avoid being targeted by the latest scams, 

cyber criminals, and con-artists. This connection also allows residents the opportunity to 

update the program of new scams or twists on known scams in the community. 

 

Alongside the community educational outreach component of 

the program, the service provides direct support to seniors and 

their families.  Many situations often involve a number of issues 

and require coordinated assistance with various community 

partners. Over the past year, support has been provided to help 

link seniors with health care services, as many seniors 

contacting the program do not have a family doctor, as well as 

needs around housing supports, fraud and scam prevention, 

identity theft follow up, personal safety in the home, and elder 

abuse prevention.  

 

 
 

Thank you to all of our 
community partners. By 
working together we can keep 
our communities safe and well 
informed 
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School Resource Officer 

 

The 2021 year continued as a challenging year for our School Resource Officer (SRO) due to Covid 

restrictions. Fortunately in January 2021, the SRO was able to resume most of her normal job functions 

in the local schools. This included the various types of activities a normal year would bring, with the 

added layer of safety around COVID.  

From January to June of 2021, Cst. Ponee completed 44 presentations in the schools. The topics of these 

presentations ranged from Human Trafficking, Sexting, Cyber Safety and online bullying in addition to 

others. She was able to cover a wide range of topics to reach children of all ages.  

When school resumed in September, there were efforts made to continue where she left off in the 

spring. There was 11 presentations delivered to various school groups covering the same types of topics.  

Cst. Ponee engaged with the schools to assist with lockdown drill practices, school zone patrols to 

enforce speeding in those zones that helped the RCMP ensure the safety of children while in attending 

their schools. 

Cst. Ponee continued to support the local detachment by assisting the other RCMP members on various 

calls for service and took care of a lot of the initial calls for police attendance at the various schools.  
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Closing Remarks 
 
 
Your Annapolis County District RCMP continues to work towards making our county as safe as 
possible. They continue to work in a team atmosphere, pooling resources and working towards 
the successful resolution to some of the issues we see around us. We are hopeful that 2022 will 
allow us to get out from under the cloud of COVID-19 and be able to focus on returning to some 
normal operations in the policing world. We welcome any and all feedback on how we’re doing, 
not doing, and suggestions for addressing your policing concerns.  
 
 
 
Staff Sergeant Andrew Buckle 
District Commander 
RCMP Annapolis County. 
 

102 of 148 2022-02-15 Council Agenda Package



 

570 Main St. PO Box 100 
Lawrencetown, Anna. Co. NS., B0S 1M0 

902 584-3339    
manager@annapolisvalleyexhibition.com 

 
 
 

Municipality of the County of Annapolis 
752 St. George St. PO Box 100 
Annapolis Royal, NS., B0S 1A0 
 
Re; Annual Report – Annapolis Valley Exhibition Society 
 
Welcome to the Municipality of the County of Annapolis new and returning Counselors. 

Many of you are familiar with the Annapolis Valley Exhibition, beginning in 1927 as the 
Riverside Guernsey Club Show as a one-day show. The first building constructed was the Dining 
Hall in 1930. Over the decades the “Exhibition” has grown into a six-day event and is a highlight 
of the summer season in the Valley. Many still plan their vacation around the dates of the 
Exhibition.  We also provide a wonderful venue for a variety of events and activities from April 
to September for groups such as 4H, Local and Regional Pony Clubs, both youth focused groups, 
the Maritime Ox Pulling Association and the Western Draft Horse Association as well as various 
equestrian associations. 
 
 
The Annapolis Valley Exhibition experienced another year of challenges in 2021 with Covid-19.  

The Exhibition Association of Nova Scotia with the approval of the Minister of Agriculture made 

the decision to allow modified versions of our traditional Fairs. While not the easiest 

undertaking, we were one of the few facilities willing to undertake the complicated process of 

offering events. All planning had to take place with the understanding restrictions may change 

at any time and we would have to be adaptable.  We were able to offer a Beef Show, Horse 

Pull, Fruit & Vegetable Display, Light Horse Show and Truck and Tractor Pull as well as a small 

concert with a local band. Some events were closed to the public, while others were operated 

with zones to abide by the restrictions in place.  

Early in the year we had rentals, or our own events booked for every weekend late May until 

the first weekend in Sept. Many had to be rescheduled with increased restrictions during May 
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and June. We extended the season to the end of September. We had four organizations book 

the grounds for competitions, one of which had two weekends. In the end only two events 

were completely cancelled - The AVEx Ox Pull and the Redneck Rodeo.  

Winter storage remained in high demand and continues to be a steady revenue source. The 

fundraising Auction and Dinner typically held each spring, with a hiatus in 2020 due to Covid-19 

was held in November this year and was the most successful to date. We are honoured to be 

supported by local businesses and the community at large.  

The generosity of our Municipal funding partner and various programs offered through the 

Federal and Provincial governments we were able to continue infrastructure maintenance and 

improvements. In 2021, we began to address the steel roofing on the buildings. The application 

of Techi -seal, a product specifically developed for covering steel roofing material that covers 

rust, seals small leaks that develop over time as well as improve the aesthetic of the grounds. 

Three buildings were completed this year, the office building, barn 2 and barn 3, product cost 

$8556 and professional labour $14,539, as well as volunteer and staff assistance for 

preparation.  The original plan was to have five buildings completed in 2021, the decision was 

made to be fiscally responsible with the change in anticipated revenue decline due to Covid-19.  

This is an important project; the product and labour costs are significant but will preserve the 

roofing in a more economical manner than replacing the steel will continue into 2022.  

Planning is underway for the upcoming season with the hope we will be able to operate under 

more normal circumstances but with Covid-19 still in our midst we must be adaptable and be 

ready with alternate planning. 

We remain committed to our mission of enriching our community, celebrating the past, 

showcasing the present and promoting the future through agricultural awareness. The facility 

will be available to groups to utilize following operational plans to keep participants and our 

community safe. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Gidget Oxner, 

General Manager 

Annapolis Valley Exhibition Society 
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Annapolis Valley Historical Society 

Macdonald Museum Annual Report  

February 1st, 2022 

 
We were grateful to open to the public on June 15th, 2021 after having been closed the previous 
season due to Covid19. We honestly had hoped to be open sooner but Provincial restrictions 
made that impossible. We began our outdoor Farm Market season on June 5th  and ran it until 
end of August. We were sad to have a shorter Museum season though, not able to be open year- 
round as we were pre-pandemic since our fundraising ability still remains limited. 
 
Our two Provincially funded summer students began their work term in mid May and were with 
us for 14 weeks. They worked on the collection completing digital records, doing research, 
updating files, and photographing artifacts. They also handled many research requests in our 
genealogy center. As always, they pitched in with administration help when needed and were 
also involved in assisting with Market days each Saturday. This year we have again applied for 
Provincial student grants as well as Federal Canada Summer Job grants (last year we were not 
given any Federal students, a first for a very long time). 
 
We were open to the public until October 1st and in spite of pandemic fear and low tourism 
numbers had almost 6000 visitors at the Museum. Visitors enjoyed the Paradise Quilters exhibit 
and the Art Show and Sale by Trish Bruce. Many beautiful paintings were purchased by visitors 
from all over the province. Our ‘By the Sea’ temporary exhibit was very visual and brought much 
interest from young and old alike. We also had a small exhibit on Earnest Buckler which we are 
leaving up for this season as well since there is still much interest in it. And the elementary school 
students painted a collection of 215 rocks to commemorate the Native children found. Those 
rocks came to us for display and were placed on our first and second floor stairway. A very 
poignant and visual memorial. 
 
 We are still in some stages of planning for the coming year but will be doing some Indigenous 
based exhibitions plus hopefully a wonderful exhibition on Inglewood! We plan to open to the 
public on June 1st and stay open until end of November so we can host our Annual Christmas 
Craft show that month. And this year is the 40th Anniversary of the Museum so we hope to do 
something very special to celebrate! 
 
Of course, every plan depends on the pandemic. We can only hope for a good year and do the 
best we can to get back to ‘normal’. Fundraising continues to be difficult, and many organizations 
feel the stress of that and will be scrambling for donations. We will plan a couple of things and 
see how it goes. We did borrow the CEBA money with the $10,000 forgiven if paid back by this 
December. That was very helpful. 
 
Again, our report is brief. Here’s to the days when we return to full time operations and the 
thousands of people visiting like pre-pandemic times! 
 
Thank you again for your support. It is much appreciated! 
 
Janice Slauenwhite 
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South West Nova Transition House Association, Juniper House  

 

Overview: 

At Juniper House we provide safe shelter, a 24-hour crisis line and Outreach Services to 

women and their children who have experienced violence or abuse. We serve Yarmouth, 

Shelburne and Digby counties as well as women from other communities. At Juniper 

House we maintain a 15 bed shelter with shared living and children’s play space. We 

provide trauma informed and women’s centred services, meeting women where they are 

at and offering the supports suited to their needs. Our primary funder is the Nova Scotia 

Advisory Council on the Status of Women and we are governed by a volunteer Board of 

Directors. 

2021 Statistics Shelter Service: 

 During the calendar year, staff responded to requests for support, by phone and in 
person, a total of 1,477 times. 

 Supportive counselling was provided to clients 264 times. 
 Staff provided advocacy on behalf of clients a total of 170 times. 
 Two hundred and twenty (220) requests for information and referrals were responded 

to by staff. 
 Practical supports, including, but not limited to, food, clothing, household items and gift 

cards, were provided to 157 women, youth and children, a total of 242 times. 
 Seventy- eight clients were admitted to Juniper House during the year, with a total of 

67 stays. Children and some youth were admitted with their mothers, so their stays 
would be counted as 1 stay. 

 Of the 78 clients admitted, 43 were adults (26 years and over); 12 were youth (16 to 25 
years) and 23 were children (up to age 15). 

 The average length of stay was 22 days. 
 On departure, 44 of the 78 clients were housed independently or with family and 

friends. 
 

2021 Statistics Outreach Service: 

 Advocacy was provided 311 times to 78 clients. 
 125 clients received 437 support calls or visits 
 Safety planning was completed 68 times over the year 
 65 children ages 6-11 were able to attend day camp 

 

2021 Narrative: 

In 2021 our average length of stay was 22 days. Some women may stay for one or two days 

while others may stay for two or three months. Our length of stay continues to be impacted by 

the Covid 19 pandemic and the current Housing Crisis we are all facing. Some women in need 
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of our services are reluctant to come into Shelter for fear of living in a communal setting 

during the pandemic or because of the stricter guidelines we have in place during this time. 

Some women do not agree that the guidelines are necessary while others are simply unable to 

maintain them. Women who do stay at the shelter typically require longer stays as there is a 

lack of safe and affordable housing options for them to go to once they leave the shelter. This is 

often very discouraging for the women that we work with. Also, fewer women have come into 

Shelter with children during the pandemic compared with previous times which has an impact 

on our occupancy rate. During the pandemic we are limiting our bedrooms to one household. 

Our bedrooms are made up of different bed configurations to accommodate women and their 

children. With fewer children coming into the Shelter, as we have 7 bedrooms it may be that 

we have reached our capacity with 7 single women in the shelter.  We have funds set aside to 

accommodate women in a hotel if needed due to the Pandemic restrictions as well as to assist 

with transportation. 

Our organization continues to participate in the High Risk Protocols in our area with local 

RCMP, Child Protection, Victim’s Services, Corrections and Men’s Intervention Programs. Due 

to the size and location of Juniper House's catchment area we participate in 2 High Risk 

Protocol tables; one for Yarmouth and Shelburne and the other for Digby and Annapolis. Our 4 

Outreach Workers represent Juniper House at these tables as well as the Executive Director 

when needed. Our Outreach Workers work with the victims involved with the Protocol, 

attending case conferences and case management meetings as well as providing court 

accompaniment, counseling and support to the women involved in the Protocol along with 

those who are not. Our Executive Director has been involved with 2 Provincial expert working 

groups as the Protocols are updated. 

We advocate for our clients on individual bases and work with other services to help meet 

client’s needs including access to Income Assistance and Housing Supports, Mental Health and 

Addictions, Child Protective Services, Restorative Justice and work with community based 

partners and programs like SHYFT, the Tri County Women's Centre, Salvation Army, Food 

Bank and the December 6th fund. Juniper House continues to be a member of the Transition 

House Association of Nova Scotia, working provincially to advocate and share resources to 

help meet our community's needs. Our Executive Director is currently engaged in a 6 month 

research project for Models of Service Delivery in Violence Against Women organizations in 

Nova Scotia. 

The Covid 19 pandemic has limited the number of awareness and training sessions we were 

able to provide given the changes in regulations that took place during this reporting period. 

Despite the restrictions, in May our Outreach workers were able to do an awareness 

presentation on Juniper House services and healthy relationships to a NSCC class as well as 

delivery of a domestic violence awareness presentation to a grade 9 class. In November they 

delivered healthy relationships sessions with Grade 7-9 Girls at the Islands Consolidated 

School as well as 3 healthy relationship seminars with grade 10 YCMHS boys and grade 10-12 

YCMHS girls. Also in November they did a presentation on Juniper House services to a NSCC 

LPN class and presented to the Yarmouth 100+ Women Who Care group. In the past we have 
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been able to have a greater engagement within the school setting and look forward to 

returning to that work once it is safe to do so.  

Our Outreach workers continue to be members of our local SchoolsPlus committees and 

collaborate with them whenever possible. They are members of the three local housing 

coalitions covering the counties in our catchment areas. We participate and partner with the 

YWCA and the Tri County Women's Centre in the Nova Scotia Transition & Advocacy program, 

supporting those who have experienced human trafficking and participate on the Trafficking 

and Exploitation Services System committee as well as with our local Sexual Assault Nurse 

Examiner and Sexual Assault Response Team committees. We continue to be a part of the 

Inspiring Communities/ Turning the Tide initiative in Digby county.  

Juniper House continues to have student placements from the NSCC Social Services program in 

Yarmouth as well as from the Addictions Community Outreach program in Kentville. Juniper 

House Outreach staff worked with the Using our Influence committee to develop a 

presentation for Cosmetology professionals entitled "Safer Spaces". The workshop was 

presented at the Aberdeenshire Wellness Festival, to NSCC Cosmetology students and the 

larger Cosmetology community in Nova Scotia. Our Outreach staff organized a beach yoga 

session as a wellness initiative during the pandemic as well as making and distributing 

Summer Activity and Wellness kits to service users and their children. All of our staff have 

completed several online trainings and education opportunities during this time. 

A focus over the past year has been on increasing our social media presence to engage with 

the wider community as much as possible and share reliable information on domestic 

violence, resources and our services as many people are increasingly engaging with social 

media for their information and communication. We have increased our social media presence 

to include frequent posts on Facebook, Instagram and Twitter and have opened these 

platforms as a means of communication. We have engaged with marketing professionals to 

develop brand and unique content for our posts which have received tremendous support and 

engagement. 

We were glad to be able to offer our 18th summer day camp program this past summer in July 

and August as we were unable to hold day camp in 2020 over concerns of the Covid 19 

pandemic. This year we were able to hire 4 summer students with the support of the Federal 

and Provincial summer student programs and 65 children ages 6-11 were able to attend day 

camp. Children are able to attend daily for one week periods and engage with programming 

around healthy relationships, bullying, self esteem, physical activity and community, all in 

creative and fun ways. We invite guest speakers from the community to participate in the 

programs as well as provide the children with healthy lunches and snacks. All of this is 

provided free of charge due to the support we receive from the community as well as the 

funding from the summer student programs. 

In the past year we have experienced the third and forth waves of the Covid 19 pandemic in 

our province which brought with it many challenges. Staff and clients were fatigued by the 

ongoing pandemic and the stresses of another round of increased restrictions and closures. 
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We were fortunate to have the experience of the previous year to build on as we continued to 

work through these uncertain and unprecedented times. At the beginning of the Covid 19 

pandemic we had quickly updated our previous pandemic plans in collaboration and with 

support from our sister organizations in the Transition House Association of Nova Scotia as 

well as Public Health. With support from the Provincial and Federal Governments we were 

able to purchase much needed Personal Protective Equipment for Staff and Clients as well as 

have funds available to assist with the increased transportation or accommodation costs that 

may be necessary. While it was good to have these procedures in place; uncertain and 

changing protocols, increased cleaning requirements, screening procedures and the complex 

needs of the women we serve added stress to an already weary front line staff. At the end of 

this reporting period our Board entered into discussions and decision about implementing a 

vaccine mandate for staff working in the organization. It was agreed and a policy approved 

that Proof of vaccination must be provided by Staff, Students, Volunteers and Contractors 

working in the organization. 

Despite the challenges the pandemic has brought, our staff continue to come together and 

have been steadfast with their support for women and their children who have experienced 

violence or abuse in our communities. At Juniper House we continue to do all that is needed to 

provide services to those that need them and to increase awareness and supports so that we 

may all live in communities that are free from violence. 
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Special Olympics Annapolis 

 

 

 

         Nova Scotia   

 

Annual Report 
February 2022 

General Update 

There were no competitions in 2021 due to COVID-19 but our curling program was able to run until 

restrictions were reintroduced but we hope so start again soon.  Our skater continues to skate and we were 

able to restart our Wednesday evening group ran for a few weeks in November-December before restrictions 

returned.  We were able to host our annual golf tournament and for the first time ever had a hole in one at the 

tournament which made for an exciting day.  We are hopeful that 2022 will allow us to be able to do more. 

Priorities 

 Fundraising 

a. We hold an annual Golf Tournament every year, we were able to hold this in 2021  

b. Smaller fundraisers throughout the year 

 Supply athletes with a better quality of life through sport 

Accomplishments 

 We were able to have our 2020-21 curling season completed 

 We started curling again in November but have been on hold due to restrictions but will be able to restart 

soon. 

 Our Wednesday night Physically Active Lifestyle group was able to restart in November 2021 but has 

also been on hold with restrictions 

Activities 

 Summer sports include: bocce, track & field, and soccer 

 Winter sports include: Curling, snowshoeing, figure skating, floor hockey and cross country skiing as 

well as our winter bowling program which many of our athletes participate in 
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Municipality of the County of Annapolis – Grant Funding Report 
 

 

Overview of VON Community Support Services (CSS) 
VON Community Support Services in Annapolis Valley is made up of 4 core programs designed to 

support independence and to allow clients to safely age at home. 

Much like 2020, 2021 continued to challenge our department to safely meet the growing needs of our 

clients and client families, during the COVID-19 pandemic. Highlighted below you will see both our 

response to this challenge and the growth in our food security programming. 

Funding Sources for Community Support Services  
• Department of Health and Wellness  

• Nova Scotia Health Authority 

• Local Government Grants 

• Foundations 

• Community Corporation (local donor dollars) 
 

Community Support Services Budget Overview  
*2021/22 budget was rolled over from the previous fiscal year 

Meals on Wheels                                 152,313 

Transportation:                                    162,903 

Adult Day Programs:                      315,244 

General Dept:              9,392                            

*Total Department Operations:          639,852     

 

 
 

Annapolis Community Support Services  

FY 2021- 2022 
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Programs and Services  

Meals on Wheels - Hot and Frozen  
With the continued restrictions by Public Health over the course of this year, our meal delivery programs 

continued to further expand. Donning appropriate PPE and maintaining limited contact delivery, our 

dedicated team of volunteers and staff continued to drive across the counties to safely deliver meals 

both hot and frozen to our growing client base. 

Our hot program is operated in partnership with the Valley Regional Hospital, offering a selection of hot 

meals 3 days a week. Client fees are $7.00 a meal, with no added delivery charge. 

Our frozen program is operated out of the New Minas office, offering a large selection of homestyle 

frozen entrees to support a number of dietary restrictions; texture modified, diabetic, gluten free etc. 

Meals are delivered to the client’s door weekly, fees are $6.00 a meal with no added delivery charge. 

 

Transportation   
 

Our Transportation Program continued to operate without closure during this fiscal year, despite the 

many challenges in our pandemic environment. Our trained drivers provided supportive drives for 

seniors in our community to medical appointments, grocery shopping and general errands.  This 

program continues to expand as we increase our staffing component and recruit volunteers to enhance 

the support we can provide. 

0
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(Projected)

Meal Program Growth 

# of hot meals served # of frozen meals served
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The transportation program operates on a first come first serve basis with advance notice required to 

book a drive. There is currently no client fee to access this support. 

 

Adult Day Program (ADP) 
 

VON Adult Day Program (ADP) provides a safe and stimulating environment for seniors and dependent 

adults living with dementia, mental and/or physical disabilities and social isolation. ADP offers an 

engaging day of activities to help stimulate and preserve cognitive abilities, with a positive focus on 

cultivating independence for each individual client within their means. 

In working with NSHA and the Department of Health and Wellness our ADP programs continued to 

operate with added safety measures and protocols in place during this fiscal year. This was a welcomed 

return to our congregate model after months of providing a one- to -one in home visit/ADP at home for 

our client families.   

Our programs continue to run in both our Berwick and Middleton locations providing a total of 50 client 

spaces and 300 hours of respite weekly for our caregiving families. 

ADP provides a hot home cooked meal, snacks and activities for $20.00 daily.  
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Carolyn Young, Municipal Clerk/Executive Assistant 

Municipality of the County of Annapolis 

 

Re: Annual Report VIC – Bridgetown 

 

 

The VIC did not operate for the 2021 season. Similar to the previous year 

Covid-19 was the main reason for not setting up the VIC and also in getting 

volunteers and contractors to work on the necessary repairs and renovations. 

All funds received, todate, are being held to perform this work in the spring of 

2022. 

 

Gary Olsvik, Treasurer 

Bridgetown and Area Chamber of Commerce Society 
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Town of Middleton 
Incorporated July 22, 1909 

 

Town of Middleton 
Department of Recreation & 
Community Development 
P.O. Box 340,  
Middleton NS B0S 1P0 
Ph: (902) 825-4841 #106 
Fax: (902) 825-4268 
www.discovermiddleton.ca 
 

 
 
August 17, 2021 
 
Att: Mrs. Nancy Chisholm 
County of Annapolis  
 
SUBJECT: Visitor Information Center 
 
Dear Mrs. Chisholm, 
 
Herewith find our report for last season. It was quite a departure from past tourist seasons, but 
we managed to operate a different type of VIC and did so with the blessing of TIANS. 
 
The Visitor Information Center in Middleton has operated out of the Macdonald Museum 
since we abandoned our Bridge Street location.  They hosted us for 2 seasons but March 
(2020), they closed the museum for COVID and we were left without a physical location. This 
year (2021), they decided they were not comfortable with extra visitors due to COVID and did 
not allow us to operate, so the virtual model persisted, with TIANS blessing. 
 
It was tough to adequately log the inquiries, but approximately 65 phone calls were received. 
The web link we set up for this new venue had just over 14,000 views. We also created an 
map directory both as a physical and a digital piece. 
 
We hope to be able to revert to an in-person service offering for Summer 2022. 
 
Thank you for your continued support of our Visitor Information Center. 
 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 

 
 
 
Andy Kerr 
Director, Recreation & 
Community Development 
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TOWN OF MIDDLETON
TOURIST BUREAU
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Town of Middleton Tourist Bureau are the responsibility

of the Town's management and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance

with Canadian public sector accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of

the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada ("CPA"). A summary of the significant accounting

policies are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. The preparation of financial statements

necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when

transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future

periods.

The Town's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable

assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance

with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely

basis for preparation of the financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by

management.

The audit committee meets with management and the external auditors to review the financial statements

and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the

financial statements.

The Town of Middleton Tourist Bureau financial statements have been audited by Kent & Duffett,

independent external auditors appointed by the Town. The accompanying Auditor's Report outlines their

responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the financial statements.

y._; i ci^]}UV^ l^
Sylvester Atkinson V - . - ^^fergoyd

Mayor Chief Administrative Officer

July 7, 2021 July 7, 2021

I ii<) Chartered Professional Accountants

140 of 148 2022-02-15 Council Agenda Package



Chartered Prwfcs&loBmI Accountants

Incorporated partners

Forse Investments Limited
Crosby Smith Holdings Limited

P.O. Box 817

4 Comwallis Street
Kentville, NS B4N 4H8

(902)678-1125 Fax (902) 678-1060
www.kentandduffett.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

His Worship the Mayor and Members of Council of the
Town of Middleton Tourist Bureau

Opinion

We have audited the operating fund balance sheet of the Town of Middleton Tourist Bureau as at

March 31, 2021, and the statement of operations and surplus for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Town of Middleton Tourist Bureau are

prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Town ofMiddleton Tourist

Bureau in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial

statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian

public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Town of Middleton

Tourist Bureau's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Town or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Town of Middleton Tourist Bureau's

financial reporting process.
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Crosby Smith Holdings Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Auditor fs Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Town ofMiddleton Tourist Bureau's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt on the Tourist Bureau's ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Town of Middleton Tourist Bureau to cease to

continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

-r

Kentville, Nova Scotia Chartered Professional Accountants

July 7, 2021 Registered Municipal Auditor
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TOURIST BUREAU

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND SURPLUS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Revenue

Grants (note 4)
Miscellaneous

Expenditures (page 7)
Salaries and benefits
Utilities
Office expense

Building expense
Travel and promotion

Professional fees

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES
(EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER REVENUE)

SURPLUS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

SURPLUS AT END OF YEAR

2021
Budget

(unaudited)

$ 1,325

1,325

490

835
1,325

531

$ 531

$

A.

2021
Actual

3,325
6

3,331

135

467

834
1,436

1,895

531

2,426

$

-$-

2020
Actual

9,758
50

9,808

9,225
236

33
548
102
834

10,978

(1,170)

_L2P1

531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MIDDLETON
TOURIST BUREAU

OPERATING FUND BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

ASSETS

Cash
Harmonized sales tax receivable

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

EQUITY
Surplus

On behalf of the Town

/1^ ^Ar~-^'>

JM

2021

2,426

Mayor

Chief Administrative Officer

2020

$

A.

A-

3,264 3
93

3.357 J

931 3

; 1,365
95

i 1,460

i 929

531

$ 3,357_ _$ 1,460

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOURIST BUREAU
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IVIARCH 31, 2021

1. OPERATIONS
These financial statements reflect the operation of the Tourist Bureau located at and operated by the Town

ofMiddleton.

The financial operating results of the Tourist Bureau are included in the annual consolidated financial

statements of the Town ofMiddleton.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting

Standards.

(b) A statement of cash flows has not been presented because all relevant information is disclosed in the

financial statement presentation.

(c) The Tourist Bureau acknowledges the receipt of donated materials and services. However, because of

the difficulty of determining the fair market value, all donated materials and services are not

recognized in these financial statements.

(d) Volunteers contribute an indeterminable number of hours per year to assist the Tourist Bureau in

carrying out its services. Due to the difficulty of determining their fair value, contributed services are

not recognized in these financial statements.

3. INCOME TAXES
The Tourist Bureau operates as a separate fund under the Town of Middleton, a municipal entity, and as

such is exempt from income taxes.

4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Town of Middleton contributed $1,325 (2020 - $5,758) in grants for the ongoing

operation of the Tourist Bureau.

5. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE
The Tourist Bureau derives the majority of its grant revenue through an operating grant provided by the
Town ofMiddleton. As such, its ability to continue operations is contingent on receiving this funding.

6. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to year end the Province of Nova Scoda continues to be in a state of emergency in response to

the COVID-19 Pandemic. The duration and impact to operations is not known at this time.

I ii<l Chartered Professional Accountants
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TOURIST BUREAU
SCHEDULE TO STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

SALARIES AND BENEFITS
Salary
CPP expense

El expense

WCB expense

UTILITIES
Telephone
Electricity

OFFICE
Supplies
Postage

Bank charges

BUILDING
Taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

TRAVEL AND PROMOTION
Travel and meals

2021
Budget

(unaudited)

$ $

A.

2021
Actual

$

A

2020
Actual

8,529
185
194
317

9,225

135

135

236

236

33

j-

$

A.

_$_

A.

385
105

490

^

$

A.

_$_

-1-

362
105

467

A-

$

-$.

J_
A-

33

369
179

548_

102
102
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